
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              December 21, 2021 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

December 21, 2021 - 9:30 A.M. 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 – Names of 
cases: LADWP v. Inyo County (Kern County Sup. Ct. Case Nos. BCV-18-101260-
TSC, BCV-18-101261-TSC, and BCV-18-101262-TSC). 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
  

 

  5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

  6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom signed 
Assembly Bill 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency that suspends certain requirements 
of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, and the 
Board will be conducting its meetings online. 

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at 
https://zoom.us/j/868254781. Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to 
access the videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following 
generic, non-functioning address to gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers:  (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 
215-8782; (929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are 
limited to three minutes. Written public comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant 
Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments 
will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to 
comment upon. 

 

https://inyococa.v8.civicclerk.com/Meetings/Agenda/ItemFields?id=7609
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              December 21, 2021 

  7. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new Public Works employees will be introduced to 
the Board: Aaron Ray Dondero, Equipment Operator Heavy; Brayan Gutierrez, 
Custodian; and Colton Kinzy, Equipment Operator Heavy. 

  
 

  8. COVID-19 STAFF REPORT 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 9. Assessor - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position 
Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Appraiser I exists in the 
General Fund, as certified by the Assessor and concurred with by the County 
Administrative and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal 
recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Appraiser I, Range 68 ($4,714 
- $5,728). 

 
 

 10. Treasurer-Tax Collector - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted 
Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Office 
Technician exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Treasurer-Tax Collector 
and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where 
internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could 
possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more 
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) 
Office Technician II or III at Range 059-063 ($3,816 - $5,091). 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; approval 
recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

 11. County Administrator - Economic Development - Request Board: A) approve 
Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and AccompanyCo of 
Palisade, CO, extending the term end date from December 31, 2021 to June 30, 
2022, increasing the amount of the contract by $15,000 for a total amount not to 
exceed of $61,238, and expanding the Scope of Work to allow AccompanyCo to 
provide expertise and assistance in executing the Eastern Sierra Small Business 
Resource Center Launch Plan; and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 12. County Administrator - Personnel - Request Board ratify and approve the Staffing 
Vendor Agreement between the County of Inyo and Sierra Employment Services, 
Inc. of Mammoth Lakes, CA and Inyo County for the provision of temporary 
employment services for the period of  December 14, 2021 through June 30, 2022, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 

  
 

 13. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board approve the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Teleconnect Therapies of Avalon, CA for 
the provision of psychotherapy via telemedicine in an amount not to exceed $59,040 
for the period of January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2022 and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 14. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board ratify and approve 
the Memorandum of Understanding between the Inyo County Health & Human 
Services Mentor Program and Bishop Unified School District and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              December 21, 2021 

 15. Planning Department - Request Board: A) certify that $72,877.70 in funds provided 
to Inyo County as an Affected Unit of Local Government (AULG) under the Nuclear 
Waste Policy Act, as amended, have been expended in accordance with the 
provisions of that Act, Public Law 97-425  and the 2010 Energy and Water 
Development and Related Agencies Appropriations Act (Public Law 111-85); and B) 
authorize the Chairperson to sign the certification and direct staff to submit it to the 
U.S. Department of Energy. 

  
 

 16. Public Works - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-57, titled, "A Resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Accepting 
Easements from the U.S. Forest Service Regarding County Road and Death Valley 
Road," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 17. Public Works - Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement 
between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, 
CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31, 2021 to December 31, 
2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 18. Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board: A) approve 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment of 5.3%, to the portion of the Service Fee 
Floor rates not associated with the tipping fees, effective January 1, 2022, in 
accordance with Franchise Agreements between the County of Inyo and contract 
waste haulers; and B) adopt the new schedule of Minimum Charges for Waste 
Hauling Servies for Areas A & B in Inyo County as presented in Exhibit A. 

  
 

 19. Public Works - Request Board approve proposed Ordinance 1277 titled, "An 
Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Repealing 
Certain Portions of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) and Setting Rates for Vehicle Parking 
at the Bishop Airport." 

  
 

 20. Public Works - Request Board: 
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Public Works Budget 011500 as follows: 

increase appropriation in Professional Services, Object Code 5265, by 
$120,000 (4/5ths vote required); 

B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 General Fund Contingencies Budget 
#087100 as follows: decrease appropriation in Contingencies, Object Code 
5901, by $120,000 (4/5ths vote required); 

C) Approve the Contract between the County of Inyo and Meyer Land Surveying 
of Oak Hills, CA, for on-call County Surveyor Services in an amount not to 
exceed $120,000 for the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 
2024; and 

D) Authorize the chairperson to sign the contract, contingent upon obtaining 
appropriate signatures. 

  
 

 21. Public Works - Request Board: 
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 State Funded Road Budget 034601 as 

follows:  
1. increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfers In Object Code 4998 

by $20,000 and  
2. increase appropriation in State Line Road Object Code (code # to be 

determined) by $20,000 (4/5ths vote required);   
B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Road Budget 034600 as follows: (1) 

increase appropriation in Operating Transfers Out Object Code 5801 by 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              December 21, 2021 

$20,000 (4/5ths vote required);  
C) Approve the Memorandum of Agreement and Funds Transfer Agreement 

between the County of Inyo and the Federal Highway Administration for the 
project delivery, construction contracting, and contract administration of a 
California Federal Lands Access Program Grant in an amount not to exceed 
$9,660,000 pending final project evaluation, with construction estimated to 
occur in FY 2027-2028, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets; and 

D) Authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  22. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  
 
 

 
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  23. U.S. Geological Survey - Letter regarding USGS Western Ecological Research 
Center's 2021 field studies of Bell's Vireos (Vireo belli) at Millpond Campground. 

  
 

 



County of Inyo

Assessor
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  David Stottlemyre
 
SUBJECT:  Change in Authorized Staffing and authorization to fill vacant position
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Appraiser I exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Assessor and concurred with by the 
County Administrative and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the 
position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more 
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Appraiser I, Range 68 
($4,714 - $5,728).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
An appraiser recently accepted a position as Auditor-Appraiser, opening up this Appraiser position to backfill.    
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this change, and leave the authorized strength as is.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient funding in the Assessor's Office Budget for all of the requested changes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/15/2021



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Sue Dishion Approved - 12/15/2021
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 12/15/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/16/2021
David Stottlemyre Final Approval - 12/16/2021



County of Inyo

Treasurer-Tax Collector
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Alisha McMurtrie
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the recruitment of one Office Technician II or III for the Treasurer-Tax Collector Department
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Office Technician exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Treasurer-Tax Collector and 
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Office 
Technician II or III at Range 059-063 ($3,816 - $5,091).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This office technician position will be vacated on January 5, 2022. This position is a full-time position within the 
department.This position is assigned to assist with the treasury operations of the department and a successful 
candidate must be well versed in not only standard accounting practices, but cash management and 
governmental banking operations as well. This position is vital to the daily operations of the treasury and provides 
banking services and assistance to not only the County departments, but all depositing agencies within the 
treasury pool. I am requesting approval to begin the recruitment process and to hire one Office Technician II or III 
to fill this position after it vacates early next year.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the change in authorized staffing for the Treasurer-Tax Collector 
department. This is not recommended as it would result in a negative impact on the daily operations of the 
department.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The funding for this position is included in the approved 2021-2022 annual budget.The Treasurer-Tax Collector's 
office is a general fund department.This particular position is funded through the Treasurer's Administrative Fee.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Alisha McMurtrie Created/Initiated - 11/29/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/30/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/7/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/7/2021
Alisha McMurtrie Final Approval - 12/7/2021



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Economic 
Development

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Leslie Chapman
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and AccompanyCo of Palisade, CO
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and AccompanyCo of 
Palisade, CO, extending the term end date from December 31, 2021 to June 30, 2022, increasing the amount of 
the contract by $15,000 for a total amount not to exceed of $61,238, and expanding the Scope of Work to allow 
AccompanyCo to provide expertise and assistance in executing the Eastern Sierra Small Business Resource 
Center Launch Plan; and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Over the past 12 months, great progress has been made on the establishment of the Eastern Sierra Small 
Business Resource Center (ESSBRC). AccompanyCo has been integral to the progress not only by creating the 
Business Plan but also by using their vast experience and knowledge to help guide County staff and participating 
stakeholders along the process. This contract was funded by a grant from the USDA Rural Business Grant, along 
with a small General Fund contribution. Originally, there were two components to the grant: $15,000 for live 
business seminars; and $35,000 for the comprehensive business plan. Recently, the USDA approved two grant 
amendments: one that allowed us to move the funds from the seminars and use them for the business plan, and 
one that extended the due date for the plan to January 31, 2022. This left room to expand the AccompanyCo 
scope of work and include the "Launch Plan" which will help us get the Small Business Resource Center up and 
running without impacting the County budget. These are exciting developments that will help improve the value of 
the ESSBRC and its odds of success. Staff recommends approving this amendment.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
There are no fiscal impacts to the County Budget as a result of this amendment.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. AccompanyCo Contract Amendment
2. AccompanyCo Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Miquela Beall Created/Initiated - 12/3/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2021
Leslie Chapman Approved - 12/14/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/15/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/16/2021



County of Inyo Standard Contract No. _________
Page 1

6/3/04  

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

ACCOMPANY CO FOR THE PROVISION OF
CONSULTING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and AccompanyCo 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of 
Consulting services dated June 22, 2021, on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 113, for the 
term June 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as 
set forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added 
to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change 
is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the 
original Agreement to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. TERM: January 1, 2022, to June 30, 2022

2. SCOPE OF WORK
The Contractor shall provide expertise and assistance in executing the Eastern Sierra 
Small Business Resource Center Launch Plan, herein known as The Plan. Examples of 
what The Plan will include are listed below.  

EASTERN SIERRA SMALL BUSINESS RESOURCE CENTER LAUNCH PLAN: 

1. Establish Launch Team - modifying current WG accordingly
2. Prioritize work plan
3. Facility planning
4. Secure funding for initial staff and hire
5. Build Navigator program

1. Identify key team
2. Establish information and training needs and plan
3. Training and implementation
4. Continuous improvement

6. Hold initial meetups
7. Move forward on Angel and mentor groups

1. Identify leaders
2. Bring in regional reps from Fresno.

8. Work with Tribe on strategy to fill 4 unit strip
9. Begin build of “plan room”



County of Inyo Standard Contract No. _________
Page 2

6/3/04  

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

ACCOMPANY CO FOR THE PROVISION OF
CONSULTING SERVICES

3. CONSIDERATION
a. Compensation. The limit upon amount payable under the agreement shall be 

amended to Sixty-one thousand two hundred thirty-eight dollars and zero cents. 
($61,238.00).

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
_________ DAY OF   ___________________________________.

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:_________________________________________ By:________________________________________
                    Signature 

Dated:______________________________________ ___________________________________________
                                                                                                                                    Type or Print Name 

Dated:______________________________________

Taxpayer's Identification or Social Security Number:
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:
                                        

____________________________________________
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING   FORM:

____________________________________________
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

____________________________________________
Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

______________________________________________
County Risk Manager

















County of Inyo

County Administrator - Personnel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Meaghan McCamman
 
SUBJECT:  Staffing Vendor Agreement between the County of Inyo and Sierra Employment Services, Inc. of 
Mammoth Lakes, CA
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the Staffing Vendor Agreement between the County of Inyo and Sierra 
Employment Services, Inc. of Mammoth Lakes, CA and Inyo County for the provision of temporary employment 
services for the period of  December 14, 2021 through June 30, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Like the rest of the nation, Inyo County has been experiencing more than the usual number of staff vacancies, 
and is having an unusually difficult time recruiting new staff for a variety of open positions. Sierra Employment 
Services has indicated an ability to supply Inyo County with staff to fill necessary vacancies on an as-needed 
basis. This contract will serve as a master agreement allowing various departments within Inyo County to access 
temporary staff for up to 90 days. Approving this contract is not an authorization to hire, and a Department would 
need to obtain additional approval from your Board in order to actually employ temporary employees through 
SES.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the Staffing Vendor Agreement with Sierra Employment Services. This 
is not recommended as this Agreement will help Inyo County to fill positions as necessary. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Sierra Employment Services, Inc.
 
FINANCING:
No financial impact at this stage. This Agreement simply allows Inyo County to access temporary employment 
services, which would need to be approved on an as-needed basis.  
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Modified Sierra Employment Service Staffing Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 12/6/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/6/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 12/7/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/7/2021
Meaghan McCamman Final Approval - 12/14/2021



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 1 of 15

 PRIMARY STAFFING VENDOR AGREEMENT

IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between STAFFING FIRM (“STAFFING FIRM”),       
Sierra Employment Services, Inc. and Inyo County, State of California  (“CLIENT”),

WHEREAS, STAFFING FIRM is engaged in the business of assigning its employees to 
perform services for clients, and providing related management and human resource services; and

WHEREAS, CLIENT desires to engage STAFFING FIRM to provide such services and to 
coordinate the provision of such services by other staffing firms (“SUBCONTRACTORS”) as may 
be necessary to meet CLIENT’s staffing needs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, and of the mutual covenants 
hereinafter set forth, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

1. For purposes of this Agreement, “CLIENT” refers to and includes the entity named above 
and its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, and successors.  

2. For purposes of this Agreement, “STAFFING FIRM” refers to and means Sierra 
Employment Services, Inc. and its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, and successors.

DUTIES OF STAFFING FIRM

3. Primary Vendor:  STAFFING FIRM shall provide to CLIENT the services of its employees or 
of STAFFING FIRM’s SUBCONTRACTORS’ employees (“Assigned Employees”) as requested by 
CLIENT.  CLIENT shall use the services of STAFFING FIRM as a vendor provider of Assigned 
Employees for CLIENT.  STAFFING FIRM shall manage the provision of services to CLIENT by 
STAFFING FIRM and its SUBCONTRACTORS in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement. Requests by CLIENT to STAFFING FIRM to perform under this Agreement may be 
made by the County Administrator or the Human Resource Manager only.  Requests to STAFFING 
FIRM for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon CLIENT’s 
need for such services.  This is a non-exclusive agreement for services, and CLIENT remains free 
to contract with other vendors of employees and staffing services should it so desire.  CLIENT 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or 
work will be requested of STAFFING FIRM by CLIENT under this Agreement.  By this Agreement 
CLIENT incurs no obligation or requirement to request from STAFFING FIRM the performance of 
any services or work at all, even if CLIENT should have some need for such services or work 
during the term of this Agreement.

4. Responsibilities of STAFFING FIRM: STAFFING FIRM agrees to assume full responsibility 
for paying, withholding, and transmitting payroll taxes; making unemployment contributions; and 
handling unemployment and workers’ compensation claims involving Assigned Employees with 
respect to compensation that STAFFING FIRM has agreed to pay, and to require by written 
contract that its SUBCONTRACTORS agree to comply with these responsibilities for all Assigned 
Employees they provide. Assigned Employees shall not be entitled to holidays, vacations, 
disability, insurance, pensions or retirement plans, or any other benefits offered or provided by 
CLIENT to its direct employees.  STAFFING FIRM shall require all Assigned Employees to sign an 



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 2 of 15

agreement, annexed hereto as Exhibit A, acknowledging their understanding that they are not 
entitled to CLIENT benefits offered to its direct employees and waiving any right that may be 
deemed to exist or that may come into existence with respect to such benefits.

5. Client Executive:  STAFFING FIRM shall designate and provide at no charge to CLIENT a 
STAFFING FIRM official to serve as liaison with CLIENT in overseeing the implementation of this 
Agreement.

6. Intentionally left blank.

7. Selection and Background Checks:  STAFFING FIRM shall recruit, interview, and skills test, 
screen, and ensure compliance with legally required pre-employment obligations and require by 
written contract all of its SUBCONTRACTORS to do the same for all Assigned Employees to be 
assigned to CLIENT’s facilities prior to their assignment at CLIENT.    

8. Other Background Checks: Possible other checks include criminal conviction record, 
education, drug testing, credit searches, etc.  Such additional checks will be done when mutually 
agreed upon by CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM, but CLIENT understands that such checks will be 
billed at a cost to the CLIENT. 

9. Industry-specific Checks: Possibilities include security clearances, license/permit 
verifications, fingerprinting for financial services positions, etc.   Such additional checks will be 
done when mutually agreed upon by CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM, but CLIENT understands that 
such checks will be billed at a cost to the CLIENT.

10. Reports:  STAFFING FIRM shall produce such reports as CLIENT may reasonably request 
pertaining to Assigned Employees.  STAFFING FIRM shall furnish to CLIENT any other reports in 
such formats and at such intervals as CLIENT may reasonably request.

11. Coordinated Billing:  STAFFING FIRM shall coordinate all billing from and payments to any 
SUBCONTRACTORS and CLIENT shall receive one invoice for each period in which services are 
provided.

12. Subcontractors: STAFFING FIRM will evaluate CLIENT’s staffing needs and STAFFING 
FIRM’s ability to meet those needs. If STAFFING FIRM determines that additional sources of 
Assigned Employees are needed, then STAFFING FIRM shall identify, screen, and select 
appropriate SUBCONTRACTOR(s) to provide such Assigned Employees.  Such 
SUBCONTRACTOR shall execute an agreement [to be negotiated between the Primary Vendor 
and the SUBCONTRACTOR] prior to providing any Assigned Employees to CLIENT.

13. Insurance.

For the duration of this Agreement STAFFING FIRM shall procure and maintain insurance 
of the scope and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that 
attachment.



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 3 of 15

DUTIES OF CLIENT

14. Payment for Services: 

A. Compensation.  CLIENT shall pay STAFFING FIRM in accordance with the 
STAFFING FIRM’s then-prevailing hourly rates for the services and work which are performed by 
STAFFING FIRM at CLIENT’s request.  Said rates shall be disclosed to CLIENT, and mutually 
agreed upon, on or about the time CLIENT requests services but prior to any work being 
performed under this Agreement.  STAFFING FIRM shall notify CLIENT in advance of any change 
in the quoted rate for a specific Assigned Employee who is performing services, and obtain 
CLIENT’s prior approval to the changed rate before providing continued services with that 
Employee.  CLIENT's signature on STAFFING FIRM's or SUBCONTRACTOR's timesheets 
certifies that the hours shown are correct and that the work was performed to CLIENT's satisfaction 
and authorizes STAFFING FIRM to bill CLIENT for the hours worked by the named Assigned 
Employee.

B. Travel and Per Diem.  STAFFING FIRM will not be paid or reimbursed for travel 
expenses or per diem which STAFFING FIRM incurs in providing services and work requested by 
CLIENT under this Agreement.  

C. No Additional Consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, 
STAFFING FIRM and its Assigned Employees, officers, subcontractors, successors, and assigns 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from CLIENT, any additional consideration, compensation, 
salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  
Specifically, STAFFING FIRM and its Assigned Employees, officers, subcontractors, successors, 
and assigns shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of health 
insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid 
holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Billing and Payment.  STAFFING FIRM shall submit to CLIENT, once a week, an 
itemized invoice of all services and work that were completed at CLIENT’s request.  This statement 
will identify the date on which the services and work were performed and describe the nature of the 
services and work that were performed on each day.  Upon receipt of the invoice, CLIENT shall 
make payment to STAFFING FIRM.  CLIENT acknowledges that a finance charge of no less than 
1.5% per month will be charged for invoices over 30 days past due.  CLIENT agrees that any 
litigation arising form the extension of credit shall be conducted in Inyo County, California, which 
shall have jurisdiction over any such legal preceedings.

E. Federal and State Taxes.  

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, CLIENT will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by CLIENT to STAFFING FIRM 
under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

(2) CLIENT shall withhold California State income taxes from payments made under 
this Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated 



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 4 of 15

that total annual payments to the Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one 
thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, CLIENT has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by CLIENT to STAFFING FIRM under this Agreement.  Payment of all 
taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of STAFFING FIRM.  CLIENT 
has no responsibility or liability for payment of STAFFING FIRM’s taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by CLIENT to STAFFING FIRM, and taxes withheld from 
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) and the California State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor 
shall complete and submit to the CLIENT an IRS Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

15. Conversion Fees:  

STAFFING FIRM (and all SUBCONTRACTORS in their written agreements with STAFFING FIRM) 
shall waive its right or claim to any placement fee, conversion fee, or liquidated damages in the 
event CLIENT hires directly on to its own payroll or engages as an independent contractor any 
Assigned Employee after such Assigned Employee has worked at CLIENT’s facility for the 
maximum period of time permitted by Government Code section 31000.4 and at least a minimum 
of 480 hours, provided that CLIENT has paid to STAFFING FIRM all invoiced amounts for such 
Assigned Employee.  In the event that CLIENT hires or engages as an independent contractor any 
Assigned Employee prior to the Assigned Employee working at CLIENT’S facility for at least 480 
hours, STAFFING FIRM shall receive a placement fee equal to 10% of the Assigned Employee’s 
hourly wages for the remaining hours to reach the 480 minimum.   

This section shall not apply to the situation where an Assigned Employee who has never provided 
services under this Agreement applies on his or her own initiative for employment with CLIENT.  In 
that event, CLIENT may hire said Assigned Employee without any prior discussion with STAFFING 
FIRM and no fee of any kind shall be owing to STAFFING FIRM as a result.

16. No Payroll Transfer: CLIENT agrees not to directly or indirectly cause or permit any 
Assigned Employee assigned to CLIENT by STAFFING FIRM or SUBCONTRACTOR pursuant to 
this Agreement to transfer to another entity’s payroll, or to perform services for CLIENT while on 
the payroll of any person or firm other than STAFFING FIRM or SUBCONTRACTOR during the 
term of this Agreement and for a period of 90 days after such Assigned Employee’s assignment at 
CLIENT ends.  If CLIENT violates this paragraph, then CLIENT shall pay to STAFFING FIRM a fee 
in the amount of 10% of the Assigned Employee’s annualized regular salary and wages, or one 
thousand five hundred dollars ($1500.00), whichever figure is higher.

This section shall not apply to the situation where an Assigned Employee who has never provided 
services under this Agreement applies on his or her own initiative for employment with CLIENT.  In 
that event, CLIENT may hire said Assigned Employee without any prior discussion with STAFFING 
FIRM and no fee of any kind shall be owing to STAFFING FIRM as a result.

17. No Staff Hires: CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM agree not to directly or indirectly employ or 
engage as an independent contractor any staff employee of the other party during the term of this 
Agreement and for a period of 90 days thereafter without the prior written consent of the other 



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 5 of 15

party.  The term “staff employee” does not mean “Assigned Employee,” but rather refers to an 
employee of staffing firm who works at the premises of the STAFFING FIRM and assists in running 
the firm but is not themselves “assigned” to work at the premise of a CLIENT. Any party violating 
this paragraph shall pay to the other party a fee in the amount of 10% of the employee’s 
annualized regular salary and wages. 

This section shall not apply to the situation where an Assigned Employee who has never provided 
services under this Agreement applies on his or her own initiative for employment with CLIENT.  
Nor shall this section apply to the situation where more than 90 days have passed since an 
Assigned Employee last performed services for CLIENT under this Agreement.  In such situations, 
CLIENT may hire said Assigned Employee without any prior discussion with STAFFING FIRM and 
no fee of any kind shall be owing to STAFFING FIRM as a result.

18. Limitations: 

a. CLIENT agrees that it will not entrust Assigned Employees with cash, checks, credit 
cards, merchandise, negotiable instruments, or other valuables without the express prior written 
permission of STAFFING FIRM and/or SUBCONTRACTOR and then only under STAFFING 
FIRM’s or SUBCONTRACTOR’s direct supervision and control.  The term “valuables” does not 
include any office equipment, including but not limited to computers, calculators, desk sets, 
typewriters, phones, fax machines, copiers, televisions, radios, cameras, or other audio-video 
equipment found in offices or conference rooms, regardless of whether owned by CLIENT or by its 
officers, agents, or employees.  

b. CLIENT will not request or permit any Assigned Employee to use any vehicle or 
operate machinery regardless of ownership, in connection with the performance of services for 
CLIENT.  These restrictions may be waived only if such waiver is obtained in writing from the 
President/CEO of the STAFFING FIRM.  

c. CLIENT agrees that Assigned Employees will only work on jobs for which they were 
hired and trained.  Any variances must be reported to STAFFING FIRM.

d. CLIENT agrees to notify STAFFING FIRM immediately if an Assigned Employee 
has an unexcused absence, is tardy, insubordinate, dishonest, or uncooperative, threatens or 
engages in violence, leaves work without permission, violates company rules of conduct or safety,  
destroys company property, reports to work under the influence of drugs or alcohol or is acting in 
an intoxicated or suspicious manner or any other reason the CLIENT feels Assigned Employee is 
inappropriate. 

NO GUARANTEE OF RATES 

19. As discussed above, CLIENT will pay STAFFING FIRM’s then prevailing rates for services, 
at the time a request for services is made, and CLIENT understands that said rates may change 
from time to time during this Agreement.  Notwithstanding, once STAFFING FIRM has quoted a 
specific rate to CLIENT for a particular staffing service, that rate shall apply to the services unless 
and until STAFFING FIRM has provided CLIENT with advance notice of any change in said rate, 
such that CLIENT may decide whether to discontinue services in light of the changed rate before 
services are actually rendered.



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 6 of 15

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

20. The services which STAFFING FIRM and its SUBCONTRACTORS shall render under this 
Agreement shall be as an independent contractor with respect to each other and to CLIENT.  
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create the relationship of principal and 
agent, or employer and employee, between STAFFING FIRM and CLIENT, or any 
SUBCONTRACTOR and CLIENT.

21. STAFFING FIRM and SUBCONTRACTORS shall provide workers’ compensation 
insurance coverage for Assigned Employees (except that STAFFING FIRM’s workers’ 
compensation liability may be limited in certain cases as provided in paragraphs 20b. and 47f.).  
The parties agree to immediately notify each other of any injury or accidents or any claim for 
workers’ compensation benefits involving Assigned Employees assigned to CLIENT’s facility.  
Excluding emergencies, STAFFING FIRM must be contacted before an Assigned Employee sees a 
doctor.  CLIENT understands that STAFFING FIRM will coordinate appropriate treatment (unless it 
is an emergency) at a Preferred or Exclusive Provider.  CLIENT understands that a qualified 
representative of STAFFING FIRM will be allowed to obtain a report after and accident or injury to 
insure proper disposition of possible claims.
  

OSHA COMPLIANCE

22. Because CLIENT controls the facilities in which Assigned Employees work, it is agreed that 
CLIENT is primarily responsible for compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act and 
comparable federal, state laws and regulations thereunder, to the extent those laws apply to 
Assigned Employees assigned to CLIENT’s workplaces owned, leased or supervised by CLIENT 
and to which STAFFING FIRM’s  Assigned Employee are requested to work, except as may be 
otherwise agreed in writing signed by the parties hereto. CLIENT also agrees to provide safety 
equipment, protective clothing and other health and safety devices necessary or required by law, 
or used by CLIENT’s employees in the performance of similar work. 

EEO COMPLIANCE

23. CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM affirm and agree that they are equal employment opportunity 
employers and are in full compliance with any and all applicable anti-discrimination laws, rules, and 
regulations.  CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM agree not to harass, discriminate against, or retaliate 
against any employee of the other because of his or her race, national origin, age, sex, religion, 
disability, marital status, or other category protected by law; nor shall either party cause or request 
the other party to engage in such discrimination, harassment, or retaliation.  In the event of any 
complaint of unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation by any Assigned Employee, 
CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM agree to cooperate in the prompt investigation and resolution of 
such complaint.

FMLA COMPLIANCE

24. CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM agree that for purposes of all statutory and regulatory 
requirements for employee leaves of absence, including but not limited to the Family and Medical 
Leave Act, the California Family Rights Act, the Pregnancy Disability Law, and any similar state or 
local law, CLIENT shall cooperate in STAFFING FIRM’s compliance with any such requirements.  



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 7 of 15

In no event shall this section be construed as assigning or transferring to CLIENT any legal 
responsibility for STAFFING FIRM’s compliance with such laws. 

RIGHT TO AUDIT AND CONFIRM COMPLIANCE

25. Upon reasonable written notice to STAFFING FIRM, CLIENT may inspect STAFFING 
FIRM’s records to verify STAFFING FIRM’s compliance with this Agreement.

CONFIDENTIALITY

26. CLIENT’s Confidential Information:  STAFFING FIRM acknowledges that it or its Assigned 
Employees may be given access to or acquire information which is proprietary to or confidential to 
CLIENT or its affiliated companies and their clients and customers.  Any and all such information 
obtained by STAFFING FIRM shall be deemed to be confidential and proprietary information.  
STAFFING FIRM agrees to hold such information in strict confidence and not to disclose such 
information to third parties or to use such information for any purposes whatsoever other than the 
providing of services to CLIENT.   STAFFING FIRM agrees to direct Assigned Employees to keep 
such information confidential, and to require Assigned Employees to enter into Confidentiality 
Agreements in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit B before being assigned to CLIENT.

27. STAFFING FIRM’s Confidential Information:  CLIENT acknowledges that during STAFFING 
FIRM’s performance under this Agreement, CLIENT may be given access to or acquire 
Confidential Information of STAFFING FIRM (as defined below), all of which provides STAFFING 
FIRM with a competitive advantage and none of which is readily available.  CLIENT agrees that 
during the term of this Agreement and any time thereafter it will not use or disclose to any person 
or company soliciting or requesting information from the CLIENT as a public record under the 
California Public Records Act (except under the authority of STAFFING FIRM or if ordered to do so 
by a Court of competent jurisdiction) any Confidential Information obtained during the term of this 
Agreement for any reason or purpose.  CLIENT also agrees that it will use due care and diligence 
to prevent any unauthorized use or disclosure of such information as a public record under the 
Public Records Act.  As used herein, STAFFING FIRM’s “Confidential Information” means: all 
information regarding STAFFING FIRM’s Assigned and Staff Employees, including but not limited 
to their names, home addresses, telephone numbers, skills, qualifications, evaluations, availability, 
record of assignments, and related information.  The intention of this section is to prevent third 
parties, including but not limited to other vendors of staffing services, from obtaining information 
about Assigned Employees from CLIENT for purposes of “poaching” STAFFING FIRM’s Assigned 
Employees or otherwise obtaining a competitive advantage over STAFFING FIRM.  This section is 
not intended to affect or prevent any disclosures of information related to Assigned Employees as 
can and will occur in the ordinary course of an Assigned Employee’s services to CLIENT, nor shall 
it apply to any disclosure or report that CLIENT is legally required to make.     

ASSIGNMENT OF COPYRIGHTS AND PATENTS TO CLIENT

28. Any and all discoveries and/or inventions (which shall include improvements and 
modifications) relating to work performed by Assigned Employees, or relating to matters disclosed 
to Assigned Employees in connection with work to be performed, or suggested by such matters, 
whether or not patentable, which discoveries and/or inventions are made or conceived by Assigned 
Employees, solely or jointly with others, during the term of any assignment (regardless of whether 
conceived or developed during working hours) or during a period of one (1) year thereafter, shall 



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 8 of 15

be the property of CLIENT as “work made for hire” to the extent provided by sections 101 and 
201(b) of the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. 101 et seq., and such discoveries and/or inventions shall be 
promptly disclosed to CLIENT.  CLIENT shall have the right to file and prosecute, at its own 
expense, all patent applications, whether U.S. or foreign, on said discoveries and/or inventions.  
Assigned Employees shall, during any assignment with CLIENT or any time thereafter, provide to 
CLIENT all documents, information, and assistance requested for the filing or prosecution of any 
such patent application, for the preparation, prosecution, or defense of any legal action or 
application pertaining to such discoveries and/or inventions and for the assignment or conveyance 
to CLIENT of all right, title, and interest in and to such discoveries and/or inventions, patent 
applications, and letters patent issuing thereon.  All Assigned Employees shall sign an agreement, 
attached hereto as Exhibit C, confirming the provisions contained in this paragraph 30.

COOPERATION

29.  The parties agree to cooperate fully and to provide assistance to the other party in the 
investigation and resolution of any complaints, claims, actions, or proceedings which may be 
brought by or involve any of the Assigned Employees.

TERM AND TERMINATION

30.   a. Unless sooner terminated, the initial term of this Agreement shall be from the date it 
is signed by both parties until June 30, 2022, at which point it shall automatically renew for another 
12 months (one fiscal year), and each year thereafter, unless modified or terminated in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement.  The parties agree to waive any notice prior to automatic 
renewal of this Agreement that may be required by state law.

b. This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either party upon 14 days’ 
written notice to the other party.  Such notice shall be personally delivered or sent 
by recognized overnight courier or by certified mail, return receipt requested, and 
shall be effective when received as follows:

As to STAFFING FIRM: As to CLIENT:

Name:    Meghan Stevens Name: ___________________________
Title: CEO/President Title:    County Administrative Officer
Company:    Sierra Employment Services, Inc. Company: Inyo County
Address:  P.O. Box 362, Address: P.O. Box N

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93564       Independence, CA 93526

With a copy to: With a copy to:
  

c. Either party may designate a different person to whom notices should be sent at any 
time by notifying the other party in writing in accordance with this Agreement.

d. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event the other party 
declares or becomes bankrupt or insolvent, dissolves or discontinues operations, or fails to make 



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 9 of 15

any payments within the time periods specified in this Agreement, either party may terminate this 
agreement upon 48 hours’ written notice.

31. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if CLIENT terminates this 
Agreement or notifies STAFFING FIRM of its intent to terminate this Agreement, and CLIENT 
desires to have all or some of the Assigned Employees continue to work at CLIENT’s facilities, 
CLIENT shall have the following options:

a. To pay STAFFING FIRM as a conversion fee (1) of 10% of the Assigned 
Employee's annualized compensation or for each such Assigned Employee then assigned to 
CLIENT (or who was assigned to CLIENT during the preceding 520 hours) who is engaged by 
CLIENT as an independent contractor or hired directly by CLIENT, and  (2) 10% of the Assigned 
Employee's annualized compensation for each such Assigned Employee who is transferred to or 
placed on the payroll of any other firm or person and who continues to perform services for 
CLIENT or at CLIENT’s facility; or

b. To continue to pay STAFFING FIRM for such Assigned Employee’s services at 
STAFFING FIRM’s billing rate in effect at the time of the termination of the Agreement for any 
services performed by such Assigned Employee for a one-year period following the cancellation of 
this Agreement.

32. In the event that paragraph 33 is triggered due to CLIENT’s termination of the Agreement 
and desire to have all or some of the Assigned Employees continue to work at CLIENT’s facilities, 
CLIENT shall notify STAFFING FIRM which of the options in paragraph 33 it elects, in writing, at 
least no more than five (5) days prior to the date it intends to terminate this Agreement and to 
make such payments as may be required as soon as practicable thereafter, but in no event less 
than ten (10) days from the date the Agreement is terminated.  If CLIENT does not make the 
election within such five-day (5-day) period, paragraph 33(a) will apply. 

MISCELLANEOUS

33. Survival of Certain Provisions:  Those provisions of this Agreement which by their terms 
extend beyond the termination or non-renewal of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect and survive such termination or non-renewal.

34. Amendments: No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived unless such 
amendment or waiver is agreed to in writing signed by the parties. 

35. Severability:  Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable such that if 
any one provision or clause conflicts with existing or future applicable law, or may not be given full 
effect because of such law, this shall not affect any other provision which can be given effect 
without the conflicting provision or clause.

36. Complete Agreement: This Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto, and the provisions on 
the STAFFING FIRM Timesheet Agreement, contain the entire understanding between the parties 
hereto, and supersede all prior agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter 
hereof.



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 10 of 15

37. Successors and Assigns: The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and 
be binding upon the parties and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

38. Headings:  The headings of the paragraphs of this Agreement are inserted solely for the 
convenience of reference.  They shall in no way define, limit, extend, or aid in the construction of 
the scope, extent, or intent of this Agreement.

39. Waiver:  The failure of a party to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any provision or the right of such party thereafter to enforce each and 
every provision of this Agreement.

40. Transferability:  Neither party shall transfer or assign this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other party.  

41. Ambiguities: The rule of construction that ambiguities in an agreement are to be construed 
against the drafter shall not be invoked or applied in any dispute regarding the meaning or 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement.

REMEDIES

42. This Agreement shall not affect or alter either party’s rights to seek legal or equitable relief, 
including but not limited to injunctive relief or specific performance, in the event of a breach or 
threatened breach by the other party.

43. Intentionally left blank. 

44. Indemnifications: 

a. STAFFING FIRM shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless CLIENT, its agents, 
officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, 
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney’s fees, arising out of, resulting 
from or in connection with, the performance of this Agreement by STAFFING FIRM, or STAFFING 
FIRM’s agents, officers, or employees.  STAFFING FIRM’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and 
hold CLIENT, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or alleged 
personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the 
loss of use.  STAFFING FIRM’s obligation under this provision extends to any claim, damage, loss, 
liability, expense, or other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of 
STAFFING FIRM, its agents, employees, supplier, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any 
of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable.  STAFFING FIRM’s 
obligation under this provision also extends to any claim asserted against CLIENT by an Assigned 
Employee for benefits, damages, contributions, or penalties under any employee benefit plan, 
including but not limited to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), fringe 
benefit plan, or personnel policy sponsored and maintained by CLIENT, whether or not such plans 
exclude Assigned Employees from coverage and whether or not Assigned Employees are ever 
found to constitute common-law employees of CLIENT.

STAFFING FIRM’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold CLIENT, its agents, officers, 
and employees harmless under this section is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in 
this Agreement for STAFFING FIRM to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 11 of 15

b. To the extent permitted by law, CLIENT shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
STAFFING FIRM, its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, 
losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney’s 
fees, arising out of, or resulting from the active negligence, or wrongful acts of CLIENT, its officers, 
or employees.

c. The parties agree that this paragraph 46 is the complete agreement between them 
with respect to any possible indemnification claim, and waive their right to assert any common-law 
indemnification or contribution claim against the other.  In the event that CLIENT and STAFFING 
FIRM are adjudged to be both partially at fault in any proceeding giving rise to an award of actual 
damages by a third party against both of them, CLIENT and STAFFING FIRM agree to bear 
responsibility for the resulting damages equal to their respective proportionate share of fault. 

d. As a condition precedent to indemnification hereunder, the parties each agree to 
inform the other within 2 business days of its receipt of any claim, demand, or notice for which 
indemnification hereunder may be sought, and to cooperate in the investigation and defense of any 
such claim, demand, or notice.

45. Disclaimer of STAFFING FIRM Liability: STAFFING FIRM expressly disclaims liability for 
any claim, loss, or liability of any kind whatsoever resulting from:

a. CLIENT’s failure to supervise, control, or safeguard premises, processes, or 
systems; or, without STAFFING FIRM’s express prior written approval, entrusting Assigned 
Employees with cash, checks, credit cards, merchandise, negotiable instruments, or other 
valuables. The term “valuables” shall not include any office equipment, including but not limited to 
computers, calculators, desk sets, typewriters, phones, fax machines, copiers, televisions, radios, 
cameras, or other audio-video equipment found in offices or conference rooms, regardless of 
whether owned by CLIENT or by its officers, agents, or employees.  

b. CLIENT shall not permit Employees to use any vehicle or mobile equipment, 
regardless of ownership, in connection with the performance of services for CLIENT.

c. Promises of increased compensation made by CLIENT to Assigned Employees.

d. Claims by any person relating to any CLIENT product or service.

e. CLIENT’s making substantial changes in the Assigned Employee’s job duties or 
risks without STAFFING FIRM’s prior written approval.
 

f. Claims by any person based on allegations that CLIENT’s business activities 
damaged the environment.

g. The conduct of CLIENT’s officers, employees, and agents.

h. Failure by CLIENT to provide Assigned Employees with a safe worksite or to 
provide information, training, and safety equipment with respect to any hazardous substances or 
conditions to which they may be exposed at the worksite, whether or not required by law.



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 12 of 15

46. Choice of Law: This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California, without reference to any conflicts of law principles thereof.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by STAFFING FIRM and 
CLIENT on the dates set forth below.

CLIENT STAFFING FIRM

________________________ ________________________
Signature Signature

________________________ ________________________
Printed Name Printed Name

________________________ ________________________
Date Title

________________________
Date 



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 13 of 15

EXHIBIT A

BENEFITS AGREEMENT AND WAIVER

In consideration of my assignment to any CLIENT by Sierra Employment Services, Inc. 
(STAFFING FIRM), I agree that I am solely an employee of STAFFING FIRM for benefits plan 
purposes and that I am eligible only for such benefits as STAFFING FIRM may offer to its 
employees. I further understand and agree that I am not eligible for or entitled to participate in any 
benefit plan offered by CLIENT, its parents, affiliates, subsidiaries, or successors to any of its direct 
employees, regardless of the length of my assignment to CLIENT by STAFFING FIRM and 
regardless of whether I am held to be a common-law employee of CLIENT for any purpose, and 
therefore, with full knowledge and understanding, I hereby expressly waive any claim or right that I 
may have, now or in the future, to such benefits and agree not to make any claim for such benefits.  
I understand and agree that CLIENT is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement and may fully 
enforce the Agreement’s terms against me.  

ASSIGNED EMPLOYEE STAFFING FIRM

________________________ ________________________
Signature Signature

________________________ ________________________
Printed Name Printed Name

________________________ ________________________
Date Title

________________________
Date



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 14 of 15

EXHIBIT B

ASSIGNED EMPLOYEE CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

As a condition of my assignment by Sierra Employment Services, Inc. to any CLIENT, I hereby 
acknowledge and agree as follows:

I will not use, disclose, or in any way reveal or disseminate to unauthorized parties any information 
I gain through contact with materials or documents that are made available through my assignment 
at CLIENT or that I learn about during such assignment.

I will not disclose or in any way reveal or disseminate any information pertaining to CLIENT or its 
operating methods and procedures that come to my attention as a result of this assignment.

Under no circumstances shall I remove copies or documents from the premises of CLIENT.

I understand that I shall be responsible for any direct or consequential damages resulting from any 
violation of this agreement.  

I understand and agree that CLIENT is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement and may fully 
enforce the Agreement’s terms against me.

The obligations of this Agreement shall survive my employment by Sierra Employment Services, 
Inc.

Assigned Employee Witness

________________________ ________________________
Signature Signature

________________________ ________________________
Printed Name Printed Name

________________________ ________________________
Date Date



Primary Staffing Vendor Agreement [2] Page 15 of 15

EXHIBIT C

ASSIGNMENT OF COPYRIGHT AND PATENTS

In connection with my assignment to provide services to CLIENT, I agree that any and all 
discoveries and/or inventions (which shall include improvements and modifications) relating to work 
I perform while providing services to CLIENT, or relating to matters disclosed to me by CLIENT in 
connection with work to be performed, or suggested by such matters, whether or not patentable, 
which discoveries and/or inventions are made or conceived by me, solely or jointly with others, 
during the term of my assignment (regardless of whether conceived or developed during work 
hours) or during a period of one (1) year thereafter, shall be the property of CLIENT as “work made 
for hire” to the extent provided by sections 101 and 201(b) of the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. 101 et 
seq., and such discoveries and/or inventions shall be promptly disclosed to CLIENT.  CLIENT shall 
have the right to file and prosecute, at its own expense, all patent applications, whether U.S. or 
foreign on said discoveries and/or inventions.  I shall, during any assignment to CLIENT or at any 
time thereafter, provide to CLIENT all documents, information, and assistance requested for the 
filing or prosecution of any such patent application, for the preparation, prosecution, or defense of 
any legal action or application pertaining to such discoveries and/or inventions and for the 
assignment or conveyance to CLIENT of all right, title, and interest in and to such discoveries 
and/or inventions, patent applications, and letters patent issuing thereon. I understand and agree 
that CLIENT is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement and may fully enforce the Agreement’s 
terms against me.

Assigned Employee Witness

________________________ ________________________
Signature Signature

________________________ ________________________
Printed Name Printed Name

________________________ ________________________
Date Date



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker
 
SUBJECT:  Inyo County HHS-BH contract with Teleconnect Therapies for the provision of tele-psychotherapy 
services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Teleconnect Therapies of Avalon, CA for 
the provision of psychotherapy via telemedicine in an amount not to exceed $59,040 for the period of January 1, 
2022 through June 30, 2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
As the contracted Mental Health Plan, we are required to have a certain number of therapists available to provide 
services to our clients. Over the last several months, we have had vacancies that are difficult to fill and team 
members who have been and/or are out on extended leave. Our current contractor for telepsychiatrist services is 
unable to provide this level of service and recommended a provider who they have worked with in the past, which 
has allowed for effective continuity of care and service delivery coordination. The Department is requesting 
approval of this contract while we continue to recruit and hire the staff required to meet our service delivery 
requirements under our contract with the Department of Health Care Services. This will also enable us to provide 
timely services to clients in need. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to approve this contract with Teleconnect Therapies and we would have to put 
clients on a wait list until we have staff hired and trained, as well as impact our ability to meet network adequacy 
standards required by the State.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None.
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Mental Health Realignment and reimbursement will be pursued for all Medi-Cal eligible services provided. This 
expense is budgeted in Mental Health (045200) in Professional and Special Services (5265). No County General 
Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Final Inyo-TCT Agreement 
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 12/7/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 12/10/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/13/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/14/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/16/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 12/16/2021























25.      SUBCONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

         As a mental health plan subcontractor, Contractor agrees to abide by all rules and requirements contained within Attachment D. 































County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Taylor Hartshorn
 
SUBJECT:  Approval and Ratification of the Memorandum of Understanding between Inyo County Health & 
Human Services Mentor Program and Bishop Unified School District
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the Inyo County Health & Human 
Services Mentor Program and Bishop Unified School District and authorize the HHS Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This MOU comes before your Board to be ratified as it was developed by representatives from Inyo County 
Health and Human Services (HHS) and Bishop Unified School District (BUSD) and finalized by both agencies at 
the end of November 2021.
 
The purpose of the MOU between the two organizations is to outline the expectations and responsibilities of both 
organizations in respect to approving volunteers in the Mentor Program, who volunteer on BUSD campuses. For 
school year 2021-2022, BUSD set forth new requirements for any volunteers on their school campuses, including 
requiring a Live Scan with rapbacks, proof of auto insurance, TB testing, and proof of COVID-19 vaccination or 
weekly COVID-19 testing.
 
The MOU gives assurance to BUSD that volunteers in the Mentor Program complete requirements beyond what 
BUSD requires and that HHS keeps documentation on file, including enrollment in the Inyo County HHS 
Volunteer Program, a Live Scan and Trust Line background check and rapbacks, enrollment in Department of 
Motor Vehicles Employer Pull Notice Program, proof of auto insurance, and an approval process to become a 
mentor before being matched with a student. It outlines how HHS will notify BUSD of approved volunteers and 
notify BUSD of any individuals who are no longer approved volunteers.
 
The MOU also states how volunteers in the Mentor Program will meet the BUSD requirements for TB testing and 
proof of COVID-19 vaccination or weekly COVID-19 testing.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Your Board could choose to not ratify and approve this MOU, which would jeopardize the Mentor Program and 
partnership with local schools.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Bishop Unified School District
 
FINANCING:
The Mentor Program is funded by Substance Use Disorder Prevention funds, the Substance Abuse Block Grant 
(SABG) 045315. No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County HHS and Bishop Unified School District Memorandum of Understanding
 
APPROVALS:
Taylor Hartshorn Created/Initiated - 12/9/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/9/2021
Taylor Hartshorn Approved - 12/9/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 12/15/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/15/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 12/15/2021









County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  2021 Certification of funds expended through the Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) certify that $72,877.70 in funds provided to Inyo County as an Affected Unit of Local 
Government (AULG) under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act, as amended, have been expended in accordance with 
the provisions of that Act, Public Law 97-425  and the 2010 Energy and Water Development and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Act (Public Law 111-85); and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign the certification and 
direct staff to submit it to the U.S. Department of Energy.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Section 116(c) of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (Act), as amended, defines the activities that may be 
undertaken by affected units of local government, which include monitoring, oversight, and impact assessment. 
The Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 and the Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2010 (Public Law 111-85) prohibit the use of these funds to pursue legislation against the 
U.S. Government, for any lobbying activity, or to support multi-state efforts or other coalition building activities 
inconsistent with the restrictions contained in the Act. Under the Energy and Water Development and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Act, in Federal Fiscal Year 2016, monies were expended by Inyo County which had 
been previously provided to the County by the U.S. Department of Energy to conduct appropriate activities and 
participate in licensing activities. The Nuclear Waste Policy Act requires that the County annually certify that the 
funds were used in accordance with the Act and the 2010 Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act (Public Law 111-85).  

The Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office under the guidance of the Planning Department has been 
responsible for the expenditure of the funds received from the Department of Energy. These funds have been 
expended in accordance with the relevant Federal laws as stated in the certification. The attached certification 
form states that the monies received from the U.S. Department of Energy were expended by Inyo County on 
activities that are allowable as defined under applicable federal laws, including the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 
1982, Public Law 97-425 and the 2010 Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies Appropriations 
Act (Public Law 111-85). The 2020-2021 expenditures were primarily used for the County’s hydrological 
consultants to monitor wells for groundwater data in the Amargosa and Death Valley regions as it pertains to the 
Yucca Mountain Repository project.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to submit the annual certification; however, if a certification is not submitted, the 
County would no longer be eligible to receive funds for this program.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
Inyo County is recognized as an Affected Unit of Local Government (AULG). The Yucca Mountain Repository 
Assessment Office is funded by the U.S. Department of Energy and budgeted within the Yucca Mountain 
Oversight Budget #620605.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Certification FY2021
2. Transaction Listing - Federal 10.01.20~09.30.21
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 12/10/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/10/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/10/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/13/2021
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 12/13/2021



CERTIFICATION OF EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS 
FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2021 

 
 
This is to certify that Inyo County, California has expended funds during Federal Fiscal 
Year 2021 in the amount $72,877.70 provided to it through direct payment by the U.S. 
Department of Energy, and that all such expenditures were for allowable activities as 
defined under applicable federal laws, including the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, 
Public Law 97-425 and Energy and Water Development and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2010 (Public Law 111-85).   
 
It is further certified that none of the funds were: (1) used directly or indirectly to 
influence legislative action on any matter pending before Congress or a State legislature 
or for lobbying activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1913; (2) used for litigation expenses; or 
(3) used to support multi-state efforts or other coalition building activities inconsistent 
with the restrictions contained in the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, Public Law 97-
425, and the Act.   
 
 
 
 
BY:     

Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson                   Date 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
 

ATTEST:      
         Darcy Ellis, Board Clerk                            Date 
 
 
 
U.S. Department of Energy 
Kimberly.Petry@Nuclear.Energy.gov 







County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Justine Kokx
 
SUBJECT:  Two U.S. Forest Service (USFS) Easements on Segments of County Road and Death Valley Road
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-57, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Accepting Easements from the U.S. Forest Service Regarding County Road and Death 
Valley Road," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County has obtained two National Forest Road and Trails Act (FRTA) Easements from the US Forest 
Service (USFS)  pursuant to Title 16, U.S. Code §§532-538 for two road segments, one each on Death Valley 
Road and County Road. These segments are located on Inyo National Forest land, but have been historically 
maintained by Inyo County Public Works. These FRTA easements would formalize the County’s authorization to 
perform standard maintenance activities along these two road segments. No road changes or changes to the 
historical use would occur with the authorization of these easements.

Before recommending acceptance of these easements to your Board, the Public Works Department, in 
conjunction with the Planning Department, conducted a preliminary review of the acceptance of these easements 
pursuant to CEQA.  Following this review, the Planning Department concluded that further environmental review 
of this proposed action is not necessary because the project is categorically exempt as an existing facility 
(section 15301(c)).  Specifically, these easements do nothing but formalize the County's ability to perform 
maintenance work that the County has been performing on these two roads for decades.  No expansion of use or 
expansion of maintenance activities beyond the standard maintenance that the County already performs is 
permitted by these easements.  It should also be noted that the US Forest Service also reviewed the grant of 
these two easements under NEPA and found the action to be categorically exempt from the preparation of an EA 
or EIS pursuant to 36 CFR 220.6(d)(7) (sale or exchange of land where the resulting land use will remain 
essentially the same).  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
On May 14, 2019, your Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the USFS and payment to 
the USFS of $67,344.82 to facilitate the completion of a National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review project 
to examine the impacts resulting from jurisdictional agreements between Inyo County and the Inyo National 
Forest and the resulting combined use of County maintained roads that cross Inyo National Forest land. The 
resulting MOU allowed for the pursuance of perpetual easements from the USFS in order for the County to 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

operate and maintain the county roads that cross USFS land. Within the MOU, the County sought FRTA 
easements on four road segments and Special Use Permits on four road segments. The County eventually 
withdrew its request for the Special Use Permits in a letter dated April 20, 2020. Of the four remaining FRTA 
easements, the USFS agreed to issue the two before your Board today. Of the other two, Onion Valley Road was 
denied and the USFS has agreed to recognize an earlier Special Use Permit for Foothills Road, dated 11/5/1964.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the FRTA Easements and NOE. This is not recommended as these 
easements will formalize the authority of Inyo County Public Works to maintain these roads in perpetuity, and the 
environmental processes completed thus far will eventually expire.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo National Forest
Inyo County Planning Department
Inyo County Public Works
Inyo County Local Transportation Commission
County Counsel
Inyo County Auditor
 
FINANCING:
No financial impacts because the environmental reviews necessary to obtain the easements and NOE have been 
completed in prior years.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Road Easement Resolution
2. Forest Service National Environmental Policy Act Memorandum of Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Justine Kokx Created/Initiated - 12/9/2021
John Pinckney Approved - 12/9/2021
Justine Kokx Approved - 12/9/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 12/9/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/9/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/16/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/16/2021



RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,  
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  

ACCEPTING EASEMENTS FROM THE US FOREST SERVICE REGARDING 
COUNTY ROAD AND DEATH VALLEY ROAD 

WHEREAS, for decades, the Inyo County Road Department (“ICRD”) has performed routine 
maintenance and repair work on County Road and Death Valley Road; 

WHEREAS, these two roads run over Forest Service land; 

WHEREAS, despite the years of maintenance that the ICRD has performed on these roads, no 
formal legal instrument exists that gives the ICRD the right to perform maintenance on these 
roads; 

WHEREAS, the ICRD’s maintenance of these roads provides a benefit to the general public and 
the US Forest Service; 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the benefit conferred by the ICRD’s work, the US Forest Service 
is willing to grant to Inyo County two easements pursuant to the County pursuant to the National 
Forest Road and Trails Act (16 USC §§532-538); 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors that,  

1. Pursuant to Government Code § 27281, the two Public Road Easement from the US 
Department of Agriculture, US Forest Service to the County of Inyo, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, are hereby accepted by the Board of Directors of the County of Inyo.  
 

2. The County of Inyo consents to recordation of the Public Road Easements by the Director 
of the Public Works Department. 
 

3. As set forth in the Notice of Exemption prepared by the Inyo County Public Works 
Department (Exhibit B) and the Categorical Exclusion Review prepared by the US Forest 
Service (Exhibit C), the acceptance of these easements is categorically exempt from 
CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, section 15301(c).  Specifically, the County’s 
acceptance of an easement to these roads will do nothing but permit the County continue 
maintenance and repair activities that the County has conducted for decades.  This 
easement merely formalizes on-going maintenance activities. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  _______ 



NOES:  _______ 
ABSTAIN: _______ 
ABSENT: _______ 
 

________________________________ 
JEFF GRIFFITHS, Chairperson 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 

 
ATTEST: Leslie Chapman 
  Clerk of the Board 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant 
  Assistant Clerk of the Board 

  



Exhibit A 

  

















Exhibit B 

  



































Exhibit C 





































CONTACT 

Easements for Four National Forest Roads in Inyo County 

DECISION MAP 
County and Death Valley Roads 

,.,,.: ..... 

.. 

> ,. ,'

MIIM 

" I 
r 

For additional information concerning this decision, contact: 

r 

( 

. .. •..,
�,,.--f. 

;,...-·t 

,:uu 

,. 

:: 

"""" ; 
- I 

_:,i,,. -�� 

Erin Noesser, Inyo National Forest Environmental Coordinator, 351 Pacu Ln, Suite 200, Bishop, CA, 

93514, (760)920-3048 or erin.noesser@usda.gov. 

12/10/2020 

Forest Supervisor 

Page 18 of 23















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

             In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
                           County of Inyo, State of California  

              

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

held in their rooms at the County Administrative  Center in Independence on the 14
th

 day of May 2019 an order was duly 

made and entered as follows: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works – 
Forest Service 
NEPA Review 
MOU 

Transportation Planner John Pinckney presented for Board approval a Memorandum of 
Understanding and related reimbursement Cost Recovery Agreement with the U.S. Forest 
Service to complete the Inyo County road jurisdiction National Environmental Policy Act review 
project related to the Adventure Trails program. There was discussion among the Board, staff, 
and County Counsel about the contents of the MOU and Cost Recovery Agreement. Supervisor 
Kingsley noted that the NEPA review has been a long time coming, and Pinckney said his 
predecessor did a lot of work on this before his retirement and the new Inyo National Forest 
Superintendent is supportive of the project. Moved by Supervisor Totheroh and seconded by 
Supervisor Kingsley to: A) approve of a Memorandum of Agreement reimbursement “Cost 
Recovery Agreement with the U.S. Forest Service specifically related to roles and responsibilities 
for the Inyo County road jurisdiction National Environmental Protection Act review project; and B) 
authorize the County Administrator to sign the MOU and Cost Recovery Agreement. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

Routing 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

CC       
Purchasing   
Personnel   
Auditor    
CAO   
Other: Public Works 
 DATE: May 15, 2019 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 14th        

Day of  May, 2019  

 

 
 

CLINT G. QUILTER 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 

 
 

               

                             By: _____________________________ 



For Clerk's Use

Only:

AGENDA NUMBER

tb
FROM: Public Works Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: }fl,I} 1 { ZOIS

SUBJECT: Consider approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the U.S. Forest Service to
complete the Inyo County road jurisdiction National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review project.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS :

Request Board 1) consider approval of a MOU (and related re-imbursement "Cost Recovery Agreement") with
the U.S. Forest Service specifically related to roles and responsibilities for the Inyo County road jurisdiction
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review project, and2) authorize the Chief Administrative Officer
to sign the MOU and Cost Recovery Agreement.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The County was awarded a State Parks grant to complete a NEPA document evaluating potential environmental
impacts resulting from jurisdictional agreement(s) between Inyo County and the Inyo National Forest for those
County roads that are part of the Inyo County Maintained Mileage System that cross Inyo National Forest land
and are proposed for combined use. The County has three years to complete the planning grant. The starting date
for the grant is December 27,2017.

Project Scope
The County has a need to perfect the right of ways with the Forest Service for County roads that cross Inyo
National Forest land. The option being considered today is completion of a NEPA review and reaching a
jurisdictional agreement for only those roads proposed for combined-use. This option will cost the County an
estimated $160,787 plus any related staff time and any additional cadastral surveying required to define the
potential legal boundaries. See the discussion in the Financing section for more detail.

MOU
The NEPA document will require approval by the Inyo National Forest Superintendent. Inyo National Forest
and County staff mutually agreed that an MOU establishing the roles and responsibilities of each agency would
be appropriate for this project. Inyo National Forest staff provided the County with an example MOU for the
processing of a NEPA document. Staff revised the MOU to make it specific to this project and then had County
Counsel's office review the MOU. Inyo National Forest staff then recommended some minor changes. The
minor changes were reviewed and accepted by Public Works and County Counsel staff.

Background
AB 628, creating Vehicle Code section 38026.1, was passed by the State Legislature and signed into law in
2011 and then extended by SB 1345 in20l6. The bill authorizes Inyo County to establish a pilot project and
designate specified combined-use highways to link existing off-highway motor vehicle trails and trailheads on

Agenda Request Form
I

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLTNTY OF INYO
tr Consent tr Departmental n Corespondence Action tr Public Hearing
tr Schedule time for _ tr Closed Session tr Informational



federal Bureau of Land Management or United States Forest Service (USFS) lands, and to link off-highway
motor vehicle recreational-use areas with necessary service and lodging facilities, in order to provide a unified
linkage of trail systems for off-highway motor vehicles. The law will sunset on January I,2020 unless enacted
or extended by the Legislature.

The County of Inyo adopted Implementing Procedures for AB 628 (Implementing Procedures) consistent with
therequirementsofVehicleCodesections33026.l(bxl) &(2)in20l2.OnOctober12,20l2,theproject
proponents (Adventure Trails System of the Eastern Sierra, LLC) submitted 38 separate applications to Inyo
County. Each application sought County designation of a combined-use route project permitting Off Highway
Vehicles (OHV) to share the road with regular vehicular traffic as allowed by Vehicle Code section 38026.1.
Each application was for an individual project, collectively referred to as the ATV Adventure Trails of the
Eastern Sierra Project. Each application was filed in accordance with both AB 628 andthe Implementing
Procedures.

Before the Board of Supervisors considered the 38 combined-use applications, the project proponents requested
that the Board limit its consideration to just 8 combined-use routes, with one of the routes being revised. On
January 22,2015,the Board of Supervisors approved seven combined-use routes. Three routes were opened in
the summer of 2015 and then the last four were opened this year after the City of Los Angeles approved a letter
of permission to allow routes to operate that have a start point on LADWP-owned land leased by the County.

Inyo National Forest
The County was limited in its ability to designate combined use routes by the Inyo National Forest. The Forest
Service noted that no right of way agreements or easements have been identified which grant the County authority tc
maintain the roads on Forest Service lands proposed to be designated as combined use routes. The Forest Service
stated that in order for the County to proceed with the portion of the Pilot Project located on USFS land, an
agreement between the Forest Service and the County must be in place that clearly describes an easement or right of
way for the road that is being used for combined use. Before the Forest Service can consider entering into such an
agreement or granting an easement for the roads, there would have to be compliance with the NEPA.

Further discussion while negotiating this MOU has led the Forest Service to categorizethe proposed routes that
would be examined under this NEPA review as follows:

1) Roads eligible under the National Forest Road and Trail Act (FRTA) with appropriate NEPA review that
would qualifu for FRTA easements.

a. Death Valley Rd. (Adv. Trails - Northern Inyos Route 1,2&3)
b. County Rd. #2028, between Big Pine & Keough HS (Adv. Trails - Big Pine Route 1)
c. Onion Valley Rd. up to Foothill Rd. (Adv. Trails - Independence Routes 3&6)
d. Foothill Rd. (Adv. Trails - Independence Routes 3&6)

2) Roads categorized as Maintenance Level 3 (ML3) that would need a determination of safety for motorized
mixed use and NEPA review, after which they could qualifi' for a Special Use Permit (not an easement even
though these roads are in the County Maintained Mileage System).

a. Coyote Valley Rd. (Adv. Trails - Bishop Route 10)
b. McMurray Mdws Rd. (Adv. Trails - Big Pine Route 3)
c. Division Crk Rd. (Adv. Trails - Aberdeen Route 1)
d. Mazourka Canyon Rd. (Adv. Trails - Independence Route 2)

The other USFS roads under consideration during these discussions have been categorized as Maintenance Level 2
(ML2) which are suitable for mixed use without further review. The Forest Service has determined these as both
ML2, suitable for Cooperative Road Agreement andMLZ,unsuitable for agreement or easement. Their designation

Agenda Request Form
2



as ML2 does clear the way for OHV mixed usage, but does not facilitate the combined use designation with Inyo
County. No clear jurisdictional agreements have been located for any of the discussed subject roads.

As part of its approval of combined-use routeso the County did not approve any routes that have a start or an end
point on a road that is part of the USFS system.

The NEPA review of County roads will require environmental surveys along the entire portion of the road that
crosses Inyo National Forest land. Once the field information has been completed, it is estimated that it would take
12-18 months to complete NEPA.

Perpetual Easements
For each project the County has pursued on Forest Service land in the last five years or so (Sabrina Bridge, Whitney
Portal Road, Rock Creek Road, South Lake Road, Horseshoe Meadows Road flood damage), it revisited the
jurisdictional issue with the Forest Service. Initially, the Forest Service had some reluctance to reach an agreement
that would grant the County a perpetual easement to operate these roadways; however, the Forest Service appears to
be open to an agreement at this time. So as to make future projects more agreeable to each party, staff proposes that
the County pursue an agreement with the Forest Service to provide the County with a perpetual easement to operate
roads the County maintains on Forest Service land. This will make it such that the County is better prepared to
undertake projects on these roads and to respond to emergency events that effect roadway operation.

Risk Assessment
It is possible that the controversial nature of the combined-use route designation process could make the
environmental document more challenging to approve, so there may be a risk in tying the environmental analysis of
the easement agreement with the combined-use routes.

ALTERNATIVES:

1) The Board could choose to not pursue NEPA review and road easements, effectively staying with the status
quo or give further direction to staff.

2) The Board could choose to add specific language to the MOU with the U.S. Forest Service. Any changes
would require concurrence from the Forest Service.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
-California Department of Parks and Recreation Off-highway Motor Vehicle Recreation Division (grant
approval)
-Inyo County Road Department (primary source of funding for match and for all County roads option)
-Inyo County Local Transportation Commission (secondary source of funding for match and for all County
roads option)
-Inyo National Forest (approval of NEPA document, MOU partner)

FINANCING:
At the time County staff brings forward to your Board the contract with a top-ranked consultant to complete the
NEPA document for the jurisdictional review, the Board will be asked to finalize the budgeting for this project.
The grant project scope includes:

Archaeological & Biological Surveys by a consultant of the entire length of each roadway. The right of
way width will in general be 66 feet plus include existing drainage features. This may vary by road with
some roads not having a wider right of way and some roads having a ruilrower right of way.

Agenda Request Form
J

o



. . 'Completion of an Environmental Assessment (EA) or and Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) by a
consultant

o Reimbursement to Planning Department and County Counsel for their time reviewing i working on the
environmental document

o Reimbursement to Inyo National Forest staff for their time reviewing the environmental document and
working with the consultant (covered by the Cost Recovery Agreement, estimated as $67,3 44.82)

The original estimated cost to complete the State Parks grant is $618,407. The County is responsible for
providing a26Vo match for this portion of the project ($160,787). An additional future component will be to be
pay Forest Service staff for their time reviewing the actual right of way legal instruments.

Funds for this in upcoming fiscal years will come from the Road Department and from the Local Transportation
Commission (LTC) budgets.The estimated cost for the matching funds of the State Parks grant is $160,787. The
matching funds would be taken from the Road Department and the Transportation and Planning Trust budgets
in Fiscal Years 2018-2019,2019-2020, and2020-2021. The LTC will fund up to $149,000 based on the cunent
project load for Planning, Programming, and Monitoring funds and the amount of those funds forecast to be
available to the LTC. The remaining funds would come from the Road Department.

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must beCOLINTY COUNSEL:
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board olerk.)

Approved:

AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to

DateApproved

to the board clerk.)

ppn\(or.n
PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by
submission to the board clerk.)

director ofpersonnel services prior to

DateApproved:

Al,l)ltovAl,S

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

Attachments: Inyo County Roads that cross Inyo National Forest land
Draft MOU and Cost Recovery Agreement

Agenda Request Form

Date: .9 I 1 I'z

4



FS-270O-26(04t17"
OMB No. 0596-008i

CATEGORY 6 MAJOR COST RECOVERY AGREEMENT

Between

USDA, FOREST SERVICE, lnyo National Forest,

and lnyo Gounty

19MJ-1 1 -54530601

is agreement is entered into between the UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOREST SERVICE,
National Forest (the Forest Service), and the County of lnyo (the applicant) under 36 CFR 251.58.

RECITALS

On October 11,2018, the Forest Service accepted the applicant's.application for use and occupancy of National Forest
lands (hereinafter "the application"), which is enumerated in Appendix A. The Forest Service shall assess the 

'
pplicant a cost recovery fee for the agency's costs to process the application.

. The Forest Service has determined that the fee for processing the application falls within category 6 under the
pplicable Forest Service processing fee schedule and/or that the fee for monitoring the applicant's special use
uthorization falls within category 6 under the applicable Forest Service,monitoring fee schedule.

The geographic area to be covered by this agreement is on eight roads in lnyo County. See Appendix B

The application has been submitted or the applicant's special use authorization is being issued under an authority other
the Mineral Leasing Act, and the applicant has not waiVed payment of reasonable costs. Therefor,e, the Forest

is entitled to recover its full reasonable costs incurred in processing the application or monitoring the authorization

Payment of a processing fee by the applicant does not obligate the Forest Service to authorize the applicant's
and occupancy. lf the application is denied or withdrawn in writing, the applicant is responsible for costs incurred by

e Forest Service in processing the application up to and inclutling the date the agency denies the application or receives
notice of the applicant's withdrawal. lf the applicant withdraws the application, the applicant also is responsible for

costs subsequently incurred by the Forest Service in terminating consideration of the application

The Forest Service shall determine the appropriate level of environmental analysis for the application and inform the
licant prior to initiating the environmental analysis.

lnformation associated with this agreement may be released to the public in accordance with the provisions af the
of lnformation Act and Privacy Act.

I. PROCESSING FEES

BASIS FOR PROCESSING FEES

g fees for the application are based upon the direct and indirect costs that the Forest Service incurs in reviewing
application, conducting environmental analyses of the effects of the proposed use, reviewing any applicant-generated

documents and studies, conducting site visits, evaluating the applicant's technical and financial
making a decision on whether to issue the authorization, and preparing documentation of analyses,

, and authorizations for the application. The processing fee for the application shall be based only on costs that
for the for" means that but for the a the costs would not have



incurred. The processing fee shall not include costs for studies for programmatic planning or analysis or other
management objectives, unless they are necessary for processing the application. Proportional costs for ana

as capacity studies, that are necessary for the application may be included in the processing fee.

AGREEMENT

n consideration of the foregoing, the parties agree as follows:

1 . Scope of Work. The Forest Service shall develop a scope of work for processing the application and an estimate of the
costs to process the application, which will be incorporated into this agreement as Appendix C. This scope of

shall report direct costs in categories that correspond to those in the agency's accounting system, e.9., job code,
nel compensation based upon the cost to the government (salary and benefits), travel, and other direct services,

and supplies. ln addition, the estimate of the agency's processing costs shall include the agency's indirect costs
upon the approved annual indirect cost rate. Classification of costs as direct or indirect shall be in accordance with

published Forest Service budget for the applicable fiscal year

Environmental Analvsis. The Forest Service shall supervise the preparation of the environmental analysis associated
the application in compliance with applicable legal requirements, including public review of the analysis, analysis of

comments, and decision documentation. ln exercising this responsibility, the Forest Service shall endeavor to foster
n among other agencies involved in the process, and to integrate National Environmental Policy Act

irements and other environmental review and consultation requirements to avoid, to the fullest extent possible,,
cation of efforts by those:agencies. However, the Forest Service shall not delegate to any other agency its authority
the scope and content of the environmental analysis, or approval or denial of the application.

Billinq. The Forest Service shall bill the applicant prior to commencement of work. The applicant agrees to pay the
processing fee of $67,344.82.The bill for the estimated processing fee.will be sent by The Forest Service,

uerque Service Center (ASC)

Payment. The applicant shall pay the estimated processing fee within 30 days of the date the bill for the fee is issued.
Forest Service shall not initiate processing the application until the estimated processing,fee is paid. lf the applicant
to pay the estim ated processi ng fee or the fee ts ate, the Forest Service sha il cease processrng the application -unti

fee IS paid

Statement of Costq. The Forest Service shall annually report costs incurred for processing the application by providing
financial statement frem the agency's accounting system to the applicant.

Underpavment. whqn the 6stimated processing fee is lower than the full actual costs ol processing an application
un der the ngnl Leasing Act, or lower than the full reasonable costs"(When the applicbnt has not.waived

costs) of processing an application submitted under other authorities, the applicant shall pay
estimated and full actual or reasonable,processing costs within 30.days of billing.

of reasondble the
between the

Overpavment. lf payment of the processing fee exceeds the full actual costs of processing an application submitted
the Mineral Leasing Act, or the full reasonable costs (when the applicant has not waived payment of reasonable
of processing an application submitted under other authorities, the Forest Service shall either (a) refund the excess

to the applicant or (b) at the applicant's request, credit it towards monitoring fees due

Disputes

lf the applicant disagrees with the estimated dollar amount of the processing costs, the applicant may submit a written
uest before the disputed fee is due for substitution of alternative estimated costs to the immediate supervisor of the

officer who determined the estimated costs. The written request must include supporting documentation

lf the applicant pays the full disputed processing fee, the Forest Service shall continue to process the application during
supervisory officer's review of the disputed fee, unless the applicant requests that the application processing cease.

lf the applicant fails to pay the full disputed processing fee, the Forest Service shall suspend further processing of the
n pending the supervisory officer's determination of an appropriate processing fee and the applicant's payment

that fee

The authorized officer's immediate supervisor shall render a decision on a disputed processing fee within 30 calendar
of recei of the written uest from the The officer's decision is the final level of



administrative review. The dispute shall be decided in favor of the applicant if the supervisory officer does not respond to
the written request within 30 days of receipt.

9. Lack of Administrative Apoeal. A decision by an authorized officer to assess a processing fee or to determine the
estimated costs is not subject to administrative appeal. A decision by an authorized officer's immediate supervisor in
response to a request for substitution of alternative estimated costs likewise is not subject to administrative appeal.

10. Amendment. Modifications to this agreement shall be made in writing and shall be signed and dated by both parties.

1 1. Expiration and Termination. This agreement expires on May 1,2024. Either party, in writing, may terminate this
agreement in whole or in part at any time before it expires. The applicant is responsible for all Forest Service costs
oovered by this agreement that are incurred up to the date of expiration or termination.

12. Principal Point of Contact. The Forest Service and the applicant shall each establish a principal point of contact for
purposes of this agreement.

Ihe Forest Service's contact is Erin Noesser, Assistant Forest Planner,760-873-2449.

Ihe applicant's contact is John Pinckney, lnyo County Transportation Planner, (760)878-0207

lnyg County Administrative Officer

Clint Quilter Date

,,J,lf
TAMMY

Fqrest,Supervisor

USDA, Forest Service

Date

sl{l n

of information unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is
The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 8 hours per response, including the time for

ng instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the

U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national
age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic
ation, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance. (Not all
ited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require alternative means for communication of program
ation (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at 202-720-2600 (voice and TDD).

SW DC

or sponsor, a toaa person not req to respo

write US Director Office of Civilfile a 1400 ndence Aven

an agency may notto the Paperwork Redu

of information

int of discrimi



(TDD) or (866) 377-8642 (relay voice). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer

and the Freedom of lnformation Act (5 U.S.C. 552) govern the confidentiality to be provided for

or at

Privacy Act ot 1974 (5 U.S.C.
nformation received the Forest

10 or call toll free (866) (voice) users can



APPENDIXA

Airplications and Authorizations Subject to this Agreement

Applications

lnyo County is requesting a legal instrument to allow it to maintain and allow combined use (street legal and non-street
legal vehicles on the same road) on roads within the lnyo National Forest. There is currently no legal instrument in place
on these roads, and the lnyo National Forest needs to put a legal instrument in place. Four of the requested roads are
suitable for a FRTA easement, and four are suitable for a Special Use Permit. ln order for the Forest to consider these
authorizations, it must complete a NEPA analysis of the effects.

These funds will be used by the lnyo National Forest to help complete the NEPA analysis and, if applicable, issue the
authorizations.

Authorizations
N/A



lnyo County Road Requests - North End
!t4
o)
!l
J
CL

=A'
T'
o

J
o
oo
o

(ct

oIt)
6'

o
o

zIx
@

I

l
,l

I

lnyo Gounty Requested Roads

Proposed Adventure Trails

-2.MaintAgFerent, 

FS Mixed U* Amlyds

- 

3.MaintAgeemnt, ML-2, no analysis

j*-l@ 4.No lnsfument ML-2, no amlysis

Il.Posible Ea$ment

- 

NonAdwnture
Trail Roads
- Future
DebmiEtion



lnyo County Road Requests - South End

lnyo County Requested Roads

Propoaed Adventure Trails

-l.possiblo 

Eassmsnt 
- 

NonAdvsnture
Trail Roads

-2. 

MaintAgr€ement, FS Mixed Use Analysis - Future

-g.MaintAgreementML-2,noanalysis 

Detarmination

- .'' 4.No lnstrumant, ML-2, no analysis



APPENDIX C

Scope of Work

The Scope of work is more clearly spelled out in an MOU between the parties, and will be refined

throughout the analysis process.

Through this agreement, the FOREST SERVICE agrees to apply the Cost Recovery fees to cover the personnel

costs associated with providing assistance and review of the environmental analysis, pursuant to the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) related to the lnyo County Adventure Trails proposal. The lnyo'

National Forest will provide resource specialists (as defined on the attached Estimation Sheet) to review the

review the NEPA document and develop mitigation measures. Cost Recovery fees will also fund Forest Staff

to draft and issue easements, special use permits, or other instruments as appropriate. The FOREST

SERVICE will define requirements of the projects which provide conformance with local management ,'

objectives and the lnyo National Forest Land and Resource Management Plan

INYO COUNTY will conduct the NEPA analysis and Provide to the Forest Service any justifiable, necessary, or
relevant technical or environmental information it may have, which is needed (at the Forest Service's

discretion) for analysis preparation. The county will solely responsible for all Primary Consultant and . "
subcontractor fees, costs, and expenses and make no claim against the Forest Service for such fees,.costs,

and expenses. lt is the responsibility of the Proponent to make all contractual arrangements necessary to
insure that the Primary Consultant or Contractor do not incur or assess costs that are not approved in

advance by the Proponent.



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Greg Waters
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment #2 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead 
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31, 2021 to 
December 31, 2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform 
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant 
Corporation is contracted with Inyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the 
consultant, the project duration has increased, requiring a change in the contract effective dates. This does not 
come with a cost increase.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county 
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly 
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and 
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site 
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the extension to the contract, however this would prevent the consultant 
from being paid after December 31, 2021 and the project from being completed.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
There is no cost increase as a part of this Amendment #2, just a change to the contract end date.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment 2
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)
 
APPROVALS:
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 12/6/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 12/7/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/7/2021
John Pinckney Approved - 12/7/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/7/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/7/2021



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment 2 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    2   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   Fountainhead Consulting Corporation   
 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and  Fountainhead Consulting 
Corporation of Anaheim, CA  (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the 
provision of engineering services dated    July 7, 2020    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the 
term from    July 7, 2020    to    December 31, 2021. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
  

The consultant agreement will be extended from the current end date of December 31st, 2021 to the future date of 
December 31st, 2022 
 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     December 21st, 2021      . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment 2 

Page 2 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    2   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2021. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
     LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
     FORM: 
 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL 
     REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
       
Director of Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
       
County Risk Manager 



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supetuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, Ihat at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h dayof July 2020an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Gritfiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 2020
through December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

ILITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this /h
Day of JULY, 2020

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO:

Other: PublicWork
DATE: July 7, 2020

By:

&A$*



1+- l.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIREI)
MEETING: Ju\y7,2020

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between Inyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7 , 2020 through December 31, 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/J USTI FICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS :

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state(201 7-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
fonruard.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75Yo

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75o/o by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
Page2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Contract - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
Michael Errante

Createdilnitiated - 612912020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Final Approval - 613012020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF construction Nranasement c ERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') has the need for the
Construction Management Of Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by thg Diroctor of Public Works,

Michael Ermnte Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Aftachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement Shall be fr6m July 7th, 2020 tO December 31th, 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From through

B From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant - Professional)
Page 1 ol 12

10102017



Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the
Director of Public Works, Michael Errante Travel and per diem
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Aftachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment G, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the Coung
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ ssg,sze.gz (initialterm) $ (option 1) and $ (option 2) for a
total of $ 33e,e2s.37 Dol lars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(Sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by Coung to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 2 ol 12

(4)

101020't7



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Aftachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

,IO. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in wtrole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the Gounty.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 of 12

10102017



11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

{3. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 5 of 12

10102017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon availabb funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
tvto (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

10102017



23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo:
Public Works Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer Q

Consultant:
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation Name

Address
City and State

2400 E. Katella, Suite 800

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenruise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilt ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

PageT of12

lndependence, CA

Anaheim, CA 92806

10102017



AGREEMENT EETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fdslrinlsrd c8ldllng Colpordlm

FOR THE PROVISION OF Cdnatfldhn ilmrs.mrd SERV|CES

IN WITNESS} THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS ANO SEALS THIS

'h DAY OF mix)

couNTYoqNYo

By;

lvan

Dated: Dared; Aln lUn

APPROVEDAS TO FORMAND LEGALITY:

&^ra U^*f
County Counsal

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM;

( '*' Vtatrth/a&.
County Audltoi

APPROVEDAS

TO

Counly of lnyo Slardard Conlracl - No. 156
(lndepcndent Conrultanl - Profeerlonal)

Pagr I of 12

10102017



ATTAGHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020

SCOPE OF WORK:

December 31,2021

SERVICES

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page I of 12

10102017



Inyo County Public Works
Page 7 of16 N o r th R o u n d n r, 

", 
* 

" "l';ol,itntfil ; ;:::;::t
business relationship with the construction contractor(sJ who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project listed in this
Scope of Work.

In addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts ofinterest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work, The submitted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts of interest.

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execution of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest. The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract.

Some examples of conflict of interest are the following:
. Certified Materials Tester(sJ or Plant Inspector[sJ from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project,

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when such contractor teams are identified.

a

Scone of Work
The scope ofwork defined below is based on the County's current understanding ofthe work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identiSz any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this S0W.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
o Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
o Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
o Pre-Construction/Kick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
o Verify all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
o Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o Identifli inspection and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required (i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitor), and schedule (to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
o Schedule, lead, and attend weekly (or as needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
r Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



Inyo County Public Works
Page I of16 N o rth R o u n d u 

" 
u 
", 

* 
" "fTlii:{il ; ;::,:;::,

a

Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in conjunction with design engineer if needed
Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFIs, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspections/testing
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittal/RFI responses, and potential changes

to inspections/testing based on responses
Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
I Track Contractor days
. Track Contractor working hours including employee names
. Subs on site

' Major equipment on site and status
. Description of work completed and task completion status (estimatedo/o of total)
. Weather
I Catalog ofstop-work and causes
r Any QA/QC work performed including any test/inspection results, pass/fail status

of test/inspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record of all as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials used/installed
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor ofany failingtests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Veri$r material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAP

Provide structural inspection when required
Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
o Project Closeout Tasks (Following substantial completion of workJ

o Perform site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-offfrom outside agencies confirmingthat restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

o Generate Final Project Reportto include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC activities [inspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design engineerJ
o Summary of monthly progress reports

a

a

a

a

a

a

a



lnyo County Public Works
Page 9 of 16 N o r th Ro un d n r, 

", 
*"'x?iiitlil ; ;:::;::;

o Daily Reports
o Catalog ofall as-built changes
o Summary /catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIXA - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants. The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplifu the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content,

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

l. IntroductoryLetter

The introductory (or transmittal) letter shall be addressed to:

facob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independenc e, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter.

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

2. Executive Summary

3. Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider submittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
project team. Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) projects within the
past five (5J years which include the following information:

7. Contracting agency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contracting agency contact information
4. Contract amount
5. Funding source
6. Date ofcontract
7. Date of completion
8. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
10. Project Description
11, Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FoR THE pRovtstoN gp Construction Management SERVIGES

TERM

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 10 of 12

10102017



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

Exnrsrr 10-Hl Cosr PRoposal page I or3

COST-PLUS-FIXED FEf, OR LUMP SUM 0RFIRM FXED PRICE coNTRAcTs

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL SruDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are NotAllowed E Prime Consultant ! Subconsultant ! 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Corooration

Proj ectNo.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612020

DIRECT LABOR

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 119,784.00

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR cosTs [(a) + (b)]
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: q.0q96_ ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)l
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (0]

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)l

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

124,575.36

$ 119,784.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosrs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TorAL FxED FEE [(c) + (i)] x fixed fee 5.00% l

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE $ 12,217.97

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS _ITEMIZE additional if

est

l) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant 1: 7T Cnner rttina
Subconsultant Farthsnectivce
Subconsultant 3: Jericho
Subconsultant 4: Sierra ical Services

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS TNCLUDTNG SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

rorAl COST [(c) + 0) + (k) + (n)]

$nnn

$ 42,863.04
$ 8,436.00

$ 18,500.00

$ 13,552.00

$ 83.35'1.04

!R 8? ?4{ n1

$ 339,928.37
NOTES:
l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked

with trlr,o asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. lndirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with ttre

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognnant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation @age2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2Q20

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourlv Rate Total

Project Manager/Resident Eng.

Structuros Representative

lnspector/Offie Engineer

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

Descrintion of Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost I Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.00
Eouioment Rental and Suoolies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees $oon
Plan Sheets $ 0.00



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHelr 10-H1 Cosr Pnoposnl pase 2 or3

Cosr-Plus-Frxeo Fee oR Lulup Sunr oR Frnu Frxeo PncE CoNrRlcrs
(CALcuLATrorus ro R Ar.rrr cr nATED SRlRnv I rucnrnsrs)

1 . Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per Cost

Proposal

$250 000.00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+ 2o/o

+ 2o/o

+ 2a/o

+ 2o/o

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal* 5000 =

" 5000 =" 5000 =* 5000 =' 5000 =Total =

Estimated hours
(calculated above)

" ,,1000

* 2000* 750* 700
" 500

Avg
Hourly
Rate

$s0.00

5 Year
Contract
Duration

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years (lncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

NOTES:

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
$51 00
$52.02
$53 06

Estimated % Completed
Each Year

20.o%
40,0%
15.0%
15.0o/o

10.4o/o

100o/o

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$51.00
$52 02
$53.06
$54 12

$51.00
$52.02
$53 06
$54.12

Cost per
Year

$50 000 00
$102 000 00
$39,015 00
$39,795 30
$27 060.80

$257,871 10
$250,000.00

$7,871.10

2 Avg Hourly Rate
3 Avg Hourly Rate
4 Avg Hourly Rate
5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

Transfer to Page 1

ear
ear

Year
Year

3, Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Total Hours per
Year
1000 Estimated Hours Year 1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Estimated Hours Year 5

5000

4. Calculate Total Cost including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary
lncrease

1 . This is not the only way to estimate salaty increases. Other methodswill be accepted if they clearlyindicate the %
increase, the # of years ofthe contract, and a breakdown ofthe labor to be pelformed each year,

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not
acceptable.
(i,e. $250,000 x 2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3 This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.
4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

Page 2 of 9
January 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHIarr 10-H1 Cosr PnOpOSnl pase 3 or3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief thal alldirect costs identified on the
cost proposal(s) in this contract are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in
accordance wilh the contract terms and the following requirements.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

Terms and conditions of the contract

Title 23 United States Code Sec'tion 112 - Letting of Contracts
48 Code of Federal Requlations Pad 31 - Contract Cost Plinciples and Procedures

23 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 172 - Procurement, Managemenl, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service
48 Code of Federal Reoulation s Parl 9904 - Cost Accountino Standards Board (when

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must
be retained in the projectfiles and be in compliance with applicablefederaland state requiremenls.
Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are noi eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndirec{ Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvinq:

Nam
lvan Benavidez Jra' Title *: Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Signature . lvan Benavidez Jr. 3i1[:l',;3.i:l,y,iT,ff111tf 
.

Date of Certifi caiion (mmlddlyyyy). 0612612020

Email ibenavidez@fountain headcoro.com Phone Number: 909 5122815

Address 2400 E. Katella AVe, Ste 800 Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executive or financial officer of ihe consultant's or subconsultani's organization at
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has
authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the
contract.

List services the consultant is under

1

2

3

4

5

6
applicable)

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services.

Page 3 of 9
January 2020



".SlnS.-
GEOTECHNICAL . GEOLOGY . HYDROGEOLOGY. ENVTRONMENTAL . MINERAIS . MINTNG . MAfiRIALS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVICES

Pnofessional
Principd Engineey'Geologist
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Project Engineer/Geologist
Staff Engineer/Geologist
Environmental Geologist
Senior Registered Hydrogeologist
Groundwater Geologist
Expert Mtness/Deposition (4-hr min)

Field Technical
Certiff ed Welding Inspector
Stmcturd Welding Inspector
Certified Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Struchrral Bolting Inspector
Sfuctural Steel Inspector
Reinforcing Steel Inspector
EporylGrout Dowel Inspector
Field Englneey'Geologist
Field Groundwater Geologlst
Senior Field Technician
FieldTedrnician
Source Inspector
lJltrasonic Weld Tesdng
Magnetic Particle Testing

Field Technical (Prenailing Wage)
Certifi ed Welding Inspector
Struchrrd Welding Inspector
Certified Concrety'Masonry Inspector
Struchrral Bolting Inspector
SfucHral Steel Inspector
Relnforring Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel lnspector
Field Engineey'Geologist
Field Groundr,nater Geologist
Senior Field Technician
Field Technician
Source Inspector
Ulfasonic Weld Testing
Magnedc Particle Testing

Code
PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SRH

SGG

EW

Code
CwI
swl
ccr
SBI

ssI
RSI

EDI

FEG

FGG

SFT

FT

sl
UST

MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP

CCIP

SBIP

ssP
RSIP

EDIP

FEGP

FGGP

STTP

FTP

stP
USTP

MPTP

Rate

$1ss
$13S

$120
$100
$13s
$205
$13s
$2ss

Rate

$125
$1ls
$115
$115
$11s
$10s
$105
$100
$110

$eo
$8s
$90

$1ss
$1ss

Rate

$ros
$1s5
$1s5
$1ss
$1ss
$140
$140
$140
$14s
$rzo
$11s
$120
$205
$2os

Page 1 of3



CEOTECHNICAL . cEoLoGY. HYDROGEOIOGY . BI{VIRONMENTAL . MINBRALS . MINING . MATBRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

.S.(3-!S,

Code
RL

TIWT

MWT
DCR

TWS

WQP

wrs

2019

Rate

$8s
$e0
$6s

LL596
LL'%

Offi ce and l^aboratory Technical
ProJect Coordinadon
Laboratory Technician
Office Supplies/Clerical
OuBide Services

f ob Supplies/Reproduction/Postage

EquinmentRental
Rebar Locator
Ulfasonic Weld Tester
Magnetic Weld tester
Diarnond Coring Rig

Torque Wrench/Skidmore
Water QualityPnobe
Water Level Sounder

Vehide, Travel. and Per Dien
Mileage
Travel Time (200-mile max)
Room and Board
Meds

LABORATORYTESTING

Soils andAgEregates
Pro ctor (Standard Effort-4 ")
Proctor (Modified Effort-4'J
Proctor (Modifi ed Effort-6)
Proctor (Rock Correction)
Proctor (Check Point)
Wet Density fCaltrans Tube)
Durabilitylndex
Hydrometer
Plasticitylndex
Liquid Limit
PlasticLimit
R-Value (CA/NV Untreated)
Sand Equlvalent
SieveAnalysis
Siwe Analysis with 200 Wash
Specific Gravity [Coarse)
Spec{fic Gravity (Flne)

Code
PC

LT
OS

Code Rate

$.70lmi
$8s

L15%
$40

Rate
LLSVI
115%
115%

$80
$80
$s0
$2s

Rate

$225
$230
$2s0
$160
$ss

t22s
$22s
$215
$30s
$165
$16s

LLS%
$11s
$11s
$14s
$135
$13s

MI
TT
RB

M

Code

sDc4
MDC4

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccT
DI
HY

PI

LL
PL

RV

SE

SA

sAtv
sGc

SGF

TestMethod
ASTM D698
ASTM D1557
ASTM D1557
ASTM D4718
ASTM D1557
cr216
ASTM D3744 ICT 229
ASTMD422
cT204
ASIM D4318
ASTMD4318
ASTMD2844/CT301
ASTM D2419 lCT 2t7
ASTM C136ICT 202
ASTM C117

ASTltrcLzT lCT 206
ASTM C128ICT 207

Page 2 of 3



-.S.(f,sR
CEOTECHNICAL. cEO[oGY. HYDRoGBOLOGY r El{VlRotlMBNfAL. MIIfBRAII;. MlNlNG. MATERUUS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
Fracnrred/Crushed Particles
UnitWeight

Shear and Consolidation
Dlrect Shear (Undisturbed 3-Point)
Dlrect Shear (Remolded 3-Point)
Consolidation (8-P oint)
Additional Points

Concrete
Compressive Test Cyltnder
Compressive Test Grout Sample

Compressive Test Grout Prism
Compressfue Test Mortar Cylinder
Compressive Test Shotcrete Core

Oven DryDensity
Equilibrium Density

Asnhaltand Pavement
Asphalt E:rtraction by lgnition
Aggregat€ Gradation of E:rtracted Sample

Moishrre Content of Asphalt
Specific Gravity ofAsphalt Core

Theoretical Max Specific Gravity/Density
SabilometerTest

cv
FP

ct 227
ASTM D5821lCT20S
CTzLZ

TestMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

TestMethod
ASTM C39
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C567
ASTM C557

2019

$10s
$1ss
$10s

Rate

$215
$23s
$355
$ss

IIWA

Code
UST

RST

coN

Code
ccT
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Rate

$43
$43
$os
$43
$+s

$12s
Request

Rate
$250
$115
$10s

$60
$15s

ILSVI

Code
IGN

GES

MC,A

SGAC

RICE

HVEEM

TestMethod
cr 382
cT202
cT370
cT 308
cT 309

cT 365

Page3 of3



47 1st Skeei, Suite 'l

Red ands, CA 923734601
(909) 915-5900

Rate Sheet

Personncl Ceteeorr Rrtss : Charges will be made at the Category rates set forth for the time sp€,trt on
project management consultation or meetings related to the projecg field work, re,port preparation and
review, travel time to and from the job site, etc.

Position Title
Asrigned hourly rate for
the duration of the
contract

Principal In Charge s157.00
Seirirr Regulatory Specialist $157.00
ProgramManager $157.00
Senior Ecologist $140.00
CEQANEPA Specialist $140.00
Envircnnental hoject Manager $140.00
Environmental Site Manager $1lm.00
Public Outreach Sp€cidist $140.00
SeniorBiologist $140.00
FAA Licensed UAV Pilot $135.00
Biologist $12E.00
Field Biologist $r r0.00
CADD/GIS Specialist $110.00
ProjectAnalyst $105.00
General Constnrction Monitor $105.00
Adminishative $ 6s.00

Erncnses Billed At Cost: OtherDirectCmt:

Travel (non-automobile)
Lodeing
Auto andTruckRentals
Specialty Equipment and Re,lrtals
Delivery Services
Pdnting @lueprints, Photo Services, Color Copies

Specialty Supplies)

Auto Mileage (atcunentIRS rate)
Agency Permit Fees (At Cos|
Subconsulhts - Cost Plus 3%

Jeric|ro Systems, lnc 2020



Eastcrn Sr"rr. Lt o S.tt "y**
19lanaCtr&

frrrdqL*t,(A%r+6

Prevailing Wage
Pricelist 2O2A

GateEories Hourlv Rate

Survev crew (Prevailino Waoe) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundary Map Research $100

Draftinq s100



ZJC?IO?:O Hourly Rate

ZT CONSULTING

Zl-C Hourlv Rate 2020

Typeof Servlce Title Qualificatlon Hourly Rate

Prolect Management PM PE Szro

Senior Quality
neer

En$neering Service
Quality

Assistant
neer

PE / COA Sre+.ao

PE S11s.so

EIT 5so.ss

QASoure lnspection
Sewices

Q[ lnspector
cwt, Pcilt/ilt,

ASNT NDT

UTlMT
S109.151,2

CIA Field lnspectaon

SeMces (Prewillngl QA lnspector
cwr, Pcr il./ilr,

ASNT NDT

UTlMT

Per DIR

requirements

1 Minimum four hours charge for inspection services
2 Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on the job on the weekdays and any hours worked on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays.

Otier DlrectCostt'+

**r This approximate cost. All the sub invoices are pass through. ZTC does not markup the subs invoices.

TC

654ngde Offie
'-:l'- '- a---.' -r: i - .. :::

9l a::-' :-: ;

1
sdr EeGrdim Offie
:-i; -.--,. :- = i -: -:-

Pl::!-i:-';:-3

lbm Quantity Apprcr UnitGost T@lAmount
Millage TBD (Federal Rate) 5 0.575 / mib TBD

Travel in-State TBD (Gltrans Policy) Approx. 5600 / Trip TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. S1,200/Trip TBD

Bearing Pad / Elastomer Testing TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 51,500 / Unit TBD

Epoxy Coating Testing TBD (ZIC Sub ***) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 5180/ Per Test TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 5350 / Per set TBD

Hoop Testing / Couplers (<S11) TBD (ZIC Sub ***) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

High Strength Bolts TBD (ZTC Sub *+*) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestressing Components TBD (ZfC Sub ***) $125 / per sample TBD

Fl 818-359.6857 El info@ztcgrp mwlw.ztcgrp com



ATTAGHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON gp Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 11 of12

SERVICES

10102017



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVIS toN oF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 12 of '12

SERVICES

10'102017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND LIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 I0 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B [hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
Iess than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of Californi4 with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $L,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed Ietter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability [Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $l-,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyrighg trademarh trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andf or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01,0413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and verifii that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modif,i these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professiona I Services
Page



County of Inyo

Public Works - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Michael Errante
 
SUBJECT:  Waste-Hauler Floor Rate Adjustments
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment of 5.3%, to the portion of the Service Fee 
Floor rates not associated with the tipping fees, effective January 1, 2022, in accordance with Franchise 
Agreements between the County of Inyo and contract waste haulers; and B) adopt the new schedule of Minimum 
Charges for Waste Hauling Servies for Areas A & B in Inyo County as presented in Exhibit A.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On November 19, 2019, your Board approved a new Waste Management floor rate for residential, commercial 
and roll-off service charged by commercial haulers.  The intent of the approved increase was to revise the 
hauling portion of the prior rate based on the garbage trash collection component of the Consumer Price Index, 
as calculated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics.

The County's franchise agreements with waste haulers for collection of solid waste from residential and 
commercial customers established that setting rates, charges and/or floors is the Board's discretion and that if 
floors are employed, CPI adjustments will be done annually starting January 1, 2020.

Section 12.01(a) states that the County "...intends to retain and preserve its ability to allow for competition in the 
market place to obtain the best services at the lowest costs for residents and businesses and choose not to set 
Service Fees, other than Service Fee floors, for the provision of Franchise Services..." This section also states, 
"the decision of whether to regulate fees, not regulate fees or continue setting floor rates rests solely and 
exclusively with the County."

The County currently chooses to employ Service Fee floors and therefore, Section 12.01(b) applies and the 
Board of Supervisors will adjust Service Fee Floors upward and downward based on the CPI using the 
methodology described in Section 12.01(b)(1) and 12.01(b)(2), which directs us to use the CPI for all urban 
consumers for garbage and trash collection.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to reject the CPI increase by eliminating the floor rate in accordance with Section 
12.01(a) of the franchise agreements.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
There is no cost to the County from this increase in the floor rates. It will increase franchise fee revenue to the 
Recycling and Solid Waste program.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. EXHIBIT A - 2022 Rate Schedule
2. Floor Rate Comparison
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 12/2/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/3/2021
Teresa Elliott Approved - 12/6/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/6/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/6/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/7/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/7/2021



EXHIBIT A
MINIMUM CHARGES FOR WASTE HAULING SERVICES

AREAS A & B
INYO COUNTY

Effective January l, 2022

COMMERCIAL BIN SERVICtr -AREA A & B
Size l/xWeek 2lxWeek 3/xWeek
2-yard $105.86 $183.59 $264.32
3-yard $158.39 527s.23 $396.66
4-yard $201.54 $349.83 $495.35
6-yard $302.39 5524.74 5743.22

4/xWeek

$349.09
$523.83

$644.57
$966.86

5/xWeek

$432.02

$648.03

$793.79

$l,190.68

6/xWeek

$5 16.80

s775.20

$939.87

$1,409.70

Ex Ptu
$55.75

$83.42
$ I 05.86

$ I 58.85

Delivery

$40.71

$40.71

$40.71

$40.71

*** * ** *** ******* *** ******* ** ** ** **** ***t*+* **{' {. **.* **r:l*.**** ** * * *** **** * **** *** ** *** 
'} 

* ** *** ** ** *** ***. *r< **r.***

RESIDENTIAL CURBSIDE CART SERVICE - AREAS A & B

96 Gallon Monthlv Rate Each Extra Cart
1 Cart $ 33.78 $ 24.23

64 Gallon Monthlv Rate only I cart per household
I Cart S 30.27

RESTDENTIAL CURBSTDE SERVICE (CUSTOMER OWNED CONTATNER) -
AREA B - Cartago, Alabama Hills, Olancha, Darwin, Keeler
30-40 Gallon Container (per month)

I &lor 2 cans 3-cans 4-cans S-cans 6-cans

$ sl.ol $ 70.30 $ 93.52 $ 114.82 $ 136.08

* ***** ** *** *** ** * ** ** *** * * ** *** ** +* ** **** *** *** * **** * ** {.** ** * * ** **:t**** **** *** ** *** * ** *** **:t*.:t** !t**:i* *** ***

ROLL OF'F BIN SERVICE
Full Rate Per Comoactor

Bin* Roll-Off

$308.81 $386.02
$386.02 $463.23

$478.66 $555.87
$555.87 $633.07

$679.40 $756.60

$386.02 $463.23

$386.02 $463.23

30 yard

Size

20yud

Area

Bishop

Big Pine

Independence

Lone Pine

Olancha

Round Valley
Starlite

Bishop

Big Pine

Independence

Lone Pine

Olancha

Round Valley
Starlite

$494. I 0

$571.32

$663.96

$74r.1 5

$864.68

$494. l0
$494. r0

ss7t.32
$648.s 1

$741. l 5

$818.36

$941.89

$s71.32

ss7t.32

*For first l4-day use period. Service includes: delivery, rental & service (landfill fees additional).
Full Rate applies after hrst l4-day period.

These are the minimum allowable rates to be charged.

Hauler may offer a discount of up to 5Yo to all commercial customers paying in advance or within 30 days of invoice.
All commercial contract proposals must clearly delineate rates both before and after any discount is applied.

Special collection services not specified above shall be negotiated between the customer and the franchised waste hauler

72/rO/2027



CURRENT COMMERCIAL BIN SERVICE - AREA A&B

Size UxWeek 2/xWeek 3/xWeek 4/xWeek S/xWeek 6/xWeek Ex P/U

2-yard 101.20 176.12 253.84 335.33 415.11 496.61 52.94

3-yard 151.43 264.03 380.92 503.18 622.65 744.91 79.22

4-yard 192.89 336.02 476.56 620.57 764.57 905.64 100.53

6-yard 289.41 504.03 715.03 930.86 1,146.85 1,358.36 150.85

Deliverv

38.66

38.66

38.66

38.66

PROPOSED

Size l/xWeek
2-yard 105.86

3-yard 158.39

4-yard 201.54
6-yard 302.39

2/xWeek 3/xWeek
183.59

27s.23

349.83

524.74

4/xWeek
349.09

523.83

644.57

966.86

264.32

396.66
495.35

743.22

5/xWeek 6/xWeek Ex pAJ Deliverv

432.02 516.80 s5.7s 40.71

648.03 775.20 83.42 40.71

793.79 939.87 105.86 40.71

1,190.68 1,409.70 158.85 40.71

CHANGE

Size

2-yard
3-yard
4-yard
6-yard

1/xWeek
4.66

6.96

8.6s
12.99

2/xWeek
7.47

7t.20
13.81

20.77

3/xWeek
LO.49

L5.74
78.78

28.79

4/xWeek
13.76

20.65

24.OO

36.00

5/xWeek
76.92
25.37

29.22

43.83

6/xWeek
20.L9

30.29

34.23

5L.34

Ex P/U
2.8r
4.20
5.32
7.99

Deliverv

2.O5

2.O5

2.O5

2.05

CURRENT RESIDENTIAT

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL

CHANGE

32.66

33.78
7.72



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Ashley Helms
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance concerning parking fees at the Bishop Airport
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve proposed Ordinance 1277 titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Repealing Certain Portions of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) and Setting Rates for Vehicle 
Parking at the Bishop Airport."
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Ordinance 1167, which was passed in 2011, set the rates for hangar rent, tie-down fees and parking fees at Inyo 
County airports. The pricing structure for hangar and tie-down fees included an annual increase of 3%.  The 
vehicle parking fees were set as follows, with no stipulated increases: Thirty dollars ($30) per month for 
automobiles, pickups, and other vehicles twenty (20) feet or less in length, and forty-five dollars ($45) per month 
for any vehicle or trailer exceeding twenty (20) feet in length.  All vehicles must have current vehicle registration.

Given the upcoming start of commercial air service at the Bishop Airport, which will lead to an increased demand 
for short-term and long-term parking, the Airport would like to increase the long-term parking rates to be 
consistent with other area parking options - such as the Tri-County Fairgrounds. To achieve this, Public Works is 
first asking your Board to repeal the outdated rates found in the 2011 ordinance. Then, to make it easier to 
update parking rates in the future, Public Works is asking your Board to authorize the Department to set fees by 
resolution, rather than by ordinance.  

Before your Board today for approval is only the ordinance repealing Ordinance 1167 and authorizing the setting 
of fees via resolution. The resolution setting the new fees is not before your Board today, as this resolution 
cannot be passed until today's ordinance goes into effect, which will not be until 30 days after its adoption. Thus, 
Public Works will return to your Board with the resolution setting fees once today's ordinance is in effect.

However, so that your Board understands what the new parking fees will be, should your Board approve this 
resolution, Public Works plans to bring a resolution to your Board with the following proposed fees:

 $50 per month for automobiles, pickups, and other vehicles twenty feet or less in length 
 $75 per month for any vehicle or trailer exceeding twenty feet in length 
 $6 per 24 hours for automobiles, pickups, and other vehicles twenty feet or less in length 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 $12 per 24 hours for any vehicle or trailer exceeding twenty feet in length

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to make any changes to the parking fee schedule at the Bishop Airport.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
Revenue from short-term and long-term parking at the Bishop Airport remains in the Bishop Airport Operating 
Budget, and will be used to fund Airport operations and upcoming improvements to the parking area.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Airport Parking Ordinance
2. Ordinance 1167
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 12/16/2021
Ashley Helms Approved - 12/16/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/16/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/16/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/16/2021



1

ORDINANCE NO. _______

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

REPEALING CERTAIN PORTIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 1167 (2011) 
AND SETTING RATES FOR VEHICLE PARKING AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT

The Board of Supervisors of Inyo County ordains as follows:

SECTION ONE. PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Ordinance is to repeal Section IV(B) of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) and to 
create a new fee structure for off-street parking fees to be charged at the Bishop Airport.  

SECTION TWO. AUTHORITY.

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the general police power granted to the Inyo County Board 
of Supervisors.  This ordinance is not subject to the limitations or rules found in Article XIII(C) 
of the California Constitution as it pertains to a charge imposed for entrance to or use of local 
government property, or the purchase, rental, or lease of local government property.

SECTION THREE. MODIFICATIONS TO ORDINANCE NO. 1167.

Section IV(B) of Ordinance No. 1167 (2011) is hereby repealed in its entirety.

SECTION FOUR. PARKING FEES AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT

The amount to be charged by the County of Inyo for the use of the designated off-street parking 
areas controlled by the County at County operated airports shall be set by resolution of the Board 
of Supervisors.

SECTION FIVE. SEVERABILITY.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Board hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any 
portion of this Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION SIX. CEQA COMPLIANCE.

This ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and Section 15060(c)(3) (the activity is 
not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, because it has no potential for 
resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.) 



2

SECTION SEVEN. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.
Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this ordinance shall be 
published as required by Government Code Section 25124. The Clerk of the Board is hereby 
instructed and ordered to so publish this ordinance together with the names of the Board 
members voting for or against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of December, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
JEFF GRIFFITHS, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Leslie Chapman
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant
Assistant Clerk of the Board









County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Travis Dean
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Budget Amendment and the contract for on-call County Surveyor Services with Meyer 
Land Surveying of Oak Hills, CA
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Public Works Budget 011500 as follows: increase appropriation in 
Professional Services, Object Code 5265, by $120,000 (4/5ths vote required);
B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 General Fund Contingencies Budget #087100 as follows: decrease 
appropriation in Contingencies, Object Code 5901, by $120,000 (4/5ths vote required);
C) Approve the Contract between the County of Inyo and Meyer Land Surveying of Oak Hills, CA, for on-call 
County Surveyor Services in an amount not to exceed $120,000 for the period of January 1, 2022 through 
December 31, 2024; and
D) Authorize the chairperson to sign the contract, contingent upon obtaining appropriate signatures.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Since the passing of Clint Quilter, Inyo County has been without a County Surveyor. In September, Inyo County 
put out a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to hire a consultant to be the acting County Surveyor. We received 
two (2) responses, one from Lumos and Associates of Zephyr Cove, NV. and one from Meyer Land Surveying of 
Oak Hills, CA. Public Works had three (3) employees score the submissions, and all three (3) employees scored 
Meyer Land Surveying as the most qualified.

California Government Code section 27550, et seq., states;
The surveyor shall be a person authorized to practice land surveying in this state. The surveyor shall be elected 
in the same manner and for the same term as other county officers unless the board of supervisors of the county 
shall have provided by ordinance for his or her appointment by the board. If so appointed, the surveyor shall 
serve at the will of the board.

Inyo County Code states:
2.20.010 Appointment—Qualification.
    A.   Pursuant to Title 3, Division 2, Part 3, Chapter 11, Article 1 of the Government Code of the state, the 
county board of supervisors provides for the appointment of a county surveyor. The power of appointment, with 
its attendant procedure, shall be in lieu of the election procedure for county surveyor.
    B.   The surveyor shall be appointed by majority vote of the county board of supervisors, and upon such 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

appointment the surveyor shall serve at the will of the board.
    C.   The surveyor shall be a licensed land surveyor or registered civil engineer of the state. (Ord. 186, 1970.)
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the contract, but this is not recommended as the County would not have 
a County Surveyor.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
Funded in Public Works 011500, Professional Services 5265. There are sufficient funds in the General Fund 
Contingencies Budget to facilitate these Budget Amendments. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Meyer Land Surveying Contract
2. Rate Sheet - 2021-2022 
 
APPROVALS:
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 12/9/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/9/2021
Travis Dean Approved - 12/9/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 12/9/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/9/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/9/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 12/13/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 12/13/2021



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 1 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________SERVICES 

 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the 
_________________________________________services of ____________________________________ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and 
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the 
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by the ___________________________________ 
______________________________. Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under 
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or 
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the 
Consultant by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or 
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should 
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.  
 
2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from ____________________to __________________ unless 
sooner terminated as provided below. In addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for 
additional one-year periods as follows: 
 

A. From  _________________through _________________ 
B. From  _________________through _________________ 
 

 County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days 
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof. 
 
 The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon 
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement. 
 
3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation.      County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Consultant at the County's request. 
 B. Travel and per diem.      County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per 
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.   
Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests  
 

MEYER LAND SURVEYING

COUNTY SURVEYOR

County Surveyor Meyer Land Surveying

Public Works Director

1/1/22 12/31/24

N/A N/A
N/A N/A



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 2 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the 
_______________________________________________________________.  Travel and per diem 
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem 
Payment (Attachment C).  County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per 
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in 
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County. 
 C. No additional consideration.     Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Consultant shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.     The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed  
$                                                       (initial term)   $                                                               (option 1) and  
$                                                            (option 2) for a total of $                                                     Dollars 
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or 
reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract 
limit. 
 E. Billing and payment.     Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which 
were done at the County's request.  This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth 
(5th) day of the month.  The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the 
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the 
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. 
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses, 
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period.  The itemized 
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental 
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules.  Upon timely receipt of the 
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the 
month. 
 F. Federal and State taxes. 
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any 
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Consultant 
under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made 
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant’s when it is anticipated that 
total annual payments to Consultant under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred 
ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes 
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this  
   Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is 
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Consultant's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from 
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue 
Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall 
complete and submit to the County an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing 
this Agreement.  

 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A, which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Consultant that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Consultant  will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 

Public Works Director

120,000.00 N/A
N/A 120,000.00



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 3 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be 
performed within the time frame set forth by County. 
 
5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal 
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant  enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required. 
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits 
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's 
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits 
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County.  Consultant will provide 
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and 
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute 
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the 
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of 
this Agreement. 
 B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant. 
 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Personal Property of County.     Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective 
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence. 
 B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services.     Any and all compositions, publications, 
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the 
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 
 
 For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and 
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 4 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

9. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 
 
 All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant’s, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to  
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be 
considered an employee of County. It is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent Consultant: 
 

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement. 

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant’s, and not as employees of 
County. 
 
10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 

 Design Professional/Consultant agrees to indemnify, including the cost to defend, entity 
and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, costs, 
or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of 
Design Professional/Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of services under this 
contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active 
negligence, or willful acts of the County; and does not apply to any passive negligence of the County 
unless caused at least in part by the Design Professional/Consultant. 

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.     Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions. 
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.     Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant. 
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 5 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

13. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Consultant may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 
 
14. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of County. 
 
15. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days 
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts 
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.  
 
16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver  
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 
 
17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 
18. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 
 
19.  POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 6 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

gain, or enhancement.  Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 
20. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Consultant  of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification 
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment). 
 
22. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
23. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 
 
  County of Inyo:  
  ________________________________________  Department  
  ________________________________________  Address 
  ________________________________________  City and State 
 
  Consultant: 
  ________________________________________ Name 
  ________________________________________ Address 
  ________________________________________ City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

 
///       //// 

Public Works
P.O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 7 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 
 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
_______ DAY OF _________________________, _________. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT  
 
 
By: ______________________________   By: _________________________________ 
  Signature            Signature 
      _____________________________         _________________________________ 
        Print or Type Name      Print or Type Name 
 
Dated: ___________________________   Dated: ______________________________ 
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
        
_____________________________________________  
County Counsel  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
_____________________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
______________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  
 
______________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  
 

MEYER LAND SURVEYING

COUNTY SURVEYOR



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 8 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

ATTACHMENT A 
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 
 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 
 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK: 

MEYER LAND SURVEYING

COUNTY SURVEYOR

1/1/22 12/31/24

Performance of County Surveyor functions shall be in general conformance with applicable provisions of the Subdivision
Map Act, the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act, and the Inyo County Code. Project work shall include, but
may not be limited to the following tasks:

A. Provide technical review, comment and coordination with County Staff, applicant, and applicant’s surveyor for the
completion, approval and recordation (where applicable) of final tract maps, parcel maps, records of surveys, legal
descriptions, corner records, certificates of compliance, lot line adjustments, official maps and similar land development
documents. Provide signature on approval certificate of completed maps.

B. Perform research and calculations that may be necessary for processing and approval of a given project.

C. Provide technical review and comment on maps, plats, exhibits, figures, calculations, tables, charts, reports, legal
descriptions and other documents submitted by applicant in support of approval for a given project. Correspond with
applicant for submittal of any outstanding documentation or revision required to existing documents as necessary for
project approval.

D. Coordinate project work with the Inyo County Public Works Department and, where necessary, other departments.

i) This may include attendance at meetings with County staff, applicants, surveyors, or meetings from time to time.
ii) To the extent possible, allowing for project priorities and staff availability, Inyo County Public Works staff will provide
initial technical review and comment to applicant.
iii) County staff shall be responsible for developing map conditions for tentative maps, but may request input from the
County Surveyor. County staff shall be responsible for processing final tract and parcel maps to a near-complete level; the
County Surveyor shall provide final review and approval.
iv) Copies of direct correspondence with applicant shall be forwarded to Public Works. Copies of direct correspondence
with applicant’s surveyor shall be forwarded to both Public Works and applicant.

E. The County shall retain and maintain all permanent records. Work products shall be processed through the Public
Works office. Map numbering and indexing shall be assigned and processed by the County.

F. If necessary, coordinate modification to map-check procedures with Public Works staff.

G. When requested by County, perform County Surveyor functions as set forth in Government Code sections
27550-27564, et seq.

H. Tasks performed shall follow generally-accepted practices for the industry and shall meet the minimum requirements
and guidelines established by the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Act.



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 9 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

 ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 
 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 
 
 
 
 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

MEYER LAND SURVEYING

COUNTY SURVEYOR

1/1/22 12/31/24

Regular Overtime

Admin $67/hr. $100/hr.

Survey Crew $285/hr. $388/hr.

Project Surveyor (crew management) $150/hr. $205/hr.

PLS (map review, signatures, and stamp docs.) $165/hr. $235/hr.

Surveyor Assistant (office calcs, drafting, etc.) $125/hr. $195/hr.

Mapping/Checking Jr. $150/hr. $220/hr.

Survey Data Processor $165/hr. $235/hr.

GIS Analysist $145/hr. $195/hr.

Drone Pilot $165/hr. $235/hr.

Drone Pilot (crew) $285/hr. $388/hr.

Drone Processor $150/hr. $220/hr.

GPR (crew) $285/hr. $388/hr.

GPR Processor $150/hr. $220/hr.

Underground utility locating $225/hr. $328/hr.
 (Separate from GPR)

All Rates increase on July 1, 2022 approximately 6.7%



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 10 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

 ATTACHMENT C 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 
 
 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 
 
 
 
 SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEYER LAND SURVEYING

COUNTY SURVEYOR

1/1/22 12/31/24

Travel and Per diem TBD Job by Job as needed.



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 
(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 11 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               
  

ATTACHMENT D 
 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 
 
 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 
 
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS   
 

MEYER LAND SURVEYING

COUNTY SURVEYOR

1/1/22 12/31/24



Attachment 1: Insurance Requirements for PW Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards – PW Professional Services, 20210825 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or 
employees.  
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 
Commercial General Liability (CGL): ISO Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” 
basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury, and 
personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general 
aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit. The CGL policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional 
insured status as specified as follows.  

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage 
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad 
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, 
CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later edition is used).  
 
Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if Contractor 
has no owned autos, hired (Code 8), and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. May be waived with signed 
letter on Contractor’s letterhead certifying that no vehicle or mobile equipment will be used in 
the execution of the agreement.  
 
Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on Contractor’s letterhead certifying that 
Contractor has no employees. 
 
Professional Liability: Insurance as appropriate to the Contractor’s profession (errors and 
omissions, medical malpractice, etc.), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, $3,000,000 aggregate. Professional liability insurance coverage is normally required if 
Contractor is providing a professional service regulated by the state; however, other 
professional contractors, such a computer software designers and claims administration 
providers, should also have professional liability. Check with Risk Management if professional 
liability coverage is required.  
 
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

Attachment D



Attachment 1: Insurance Requirements for PW Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards – PW Professional Services, 20210825 

 
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 
Primary Coverage  
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  
 
Notice of Cancellation  
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except 
with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation  
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer 
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under 
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions  
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may 
require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability 
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured 
retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County.  
 
Acceptability of Insurers  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies (should be applicable only to professional liability) 
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the 

beginning of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five 

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy 

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must 
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of 
contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage  
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 



Attachment 1: Insurance Requirements for PW Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards – PW Professional Services, 20210825 

coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the 
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure 
to submit the required documents to Inyo County prior to beginning work shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide the documents or to have the coverage described. Inyo 
County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.  
 
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Special Risks or Circumstances  
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

-end- 



 
   CONSTRUCTION | MAPPING | GIS | SCANNING | 3D MODELING 

 

6 5 6 6   C a l i e n t e  R d   S T E  A|  Oa k  H i l l s ,   CA   9 2 3 4 4   |   T e l e p h o n e :     7 6 0 . 2 8 4 . 1 6 7 7|    
Ema i l :   r f p@me y e r l a n d s u r v e y i n g . c om   |  D I R :   1 0 0 0 0 3 4 5 0 6 |  DUN S :   0 7 9 8 8 3 9 9 8   |  DG S   S B E   2 0 0 0 2 9 7    

Da n i e l  W.  Mey e r ,   P L S   9 2 0 1   E x p .   0 3 . 3 1 . 2 0 2 3  

1 

                                    2021-2022 RATES 
 
 

                                                                     Regular                                  Overtime 
Admin                                                                        .$67/hr.               $100/hr. 
   
Survey Crew                               $285/hr.   $388/hr. 
 
Project Surveyor (crew management)                         $150/hr.                              $205/hr. 
 
PLS (map review, signatures, and stamp docs.)               $165/hr.                              $235/hr. 
 
Surveyor Assistant (office calcs, drafting, etc.)           $125/hr.                              $195/hr. 
 
Mapping/Checking Jr.                                             $150/hr.                              $220/hr. 
 
Survey Data Processor                                              $165/hr.                              $235/hr. 
 
GIS Analysist                                                             $145/hr.                              $195/hr. 
 
Drone Pilot                                                                 $165/hr.                              $235/hr. 
 
Drone Pilot (crew)                                                     $285/hr.                              $388/hr. 
  
Drone Processor                                                        $150/hr.                              $220/hr. 
 
GPR (crew)                                                                $285/hr.                              $388/hr. 
 
GPR Processor                                                          $150/hr.                              $220/hr. 
 
Underground utility locating                                   $225/hr.                              $328/hr. 
 (Separate from GPR) 
 
All Rates increase on July 1, 2022 approximately 6.7% 
Travel and Per diem TBD Job by Job as needed. 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Justine Kokx
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Budget Amendment
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 State Funded Road Budget 034601 as follows: (1) increase estimated 
revenue in Operating Transfers In Object Code 4998 by $20,000 and (2) increase appropriation in State Line 
Road Object Code (code # to be determined) by $20,000 (4/5ths vote required);  
B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Road Budget 034600 as follows: (1) increase appropriation in Operating 
Transfers Out Object Code 5801 by $20,000 (4/5ths vote required); and
C) Approve the Memorandum of Agreement and Funds Transfer Agreement between the County of Inyo and the 
Federal Highway Administration for the project delivery, construction contracting, and contract administration of a 
California Federal Lands Access Program Grant in an amount not to exceed $9,660,000 pending final project 
evaluation, with construction estimated to occur in FY 2027-2028, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets; and
D) Authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Inyo County Public Works was notified by the U.S Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 
Administration, of their decision to award $9,660,000 in Federal Lands Access Program (CA-FLAP) grant funds 
for the reconstruction of State Line Road. This is a highly competitive grant program; to win this award is an 
accomplishment for the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission. State Line Road provides the primary 
access for the majority of Death Valley National Park's 1.7 million annual visitors. This road is the principal route 
between Las Vegas, Nevada and Death Valley National Park.

The project will reconstruct 5.21 miles of State Line Road from Death Valley Junction to the Nevada/California 
state line. Improvements will include widening to 28 feet, raising the grade, improving drainage and safety 
enhancements. An important benefit to note about this project is that it will directly connect to a federal 
investment being made through an award to Nye County and the NV FLAP program to improve a connecting 
corridor which supports intra-state tourism with Death Valley National Park and joins with State Line Road.

As specified under the conditions of the FLAP project application, a scoping Funds Transfer Agreement (FTA) 
will be required between Inyo County and the Central Federal Lands Highway Division (CFLHD) in the amount of 
$20,000 in matching funds to be paid by March 1, 2022, along with a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

between the same agencies to establish the project scope, roles and responsibilities.
 
The project is preliminarily programmed for construction in late Fiscal Year 2027-2028.  However, this could 
change according to federal legislation. Currently, CA-FLAP is authorized under the new Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act, which is set to expire on September 30, 2026. The FLAP program would need to be 
extended, renewed or created through additional federal legislation. The estimated total project costs, including 
engineering, escalation and construction costs is $9,660,000. Inyo County will provide 11.47% or $1,108,000 in 
SB-1 matching funds. The CA-FLAP grant will provide $8,552,000 in cash funds.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
The County has a successful track record of delivering projects through the CA-FLAP program. The most recent 
projects include reconstruction of South Lake Road in 2020, and the 2013 CA-FLAP, reconstruction of Whitney 
Portal Road.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the budget amendment and Memorandum of Agreement and Funds 
Transfer Agreement between the County of Inyo and the Federal Highway Administration. This would not be 
recommended due to the failing condition of State Line Road and the high volume of traffic it handles. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Federal Highway Administration
Inyo County Local Transportation Commission
Inyo County Counsel
Inyo County Auditor
Inyo County Risk Manager
 
FINANCING:
This project will be budgeted in 034601 - State Funded Road, Object Code - State Line Road (object code # to 
be determined). Inyo County will pay $20,000 to the CFLHD towards the County's share of the scoping phase by 
March 1, 2022. An operating transfer of $20,000 of SB-1 funds will occur from the Road Budget 034600, Object 
Code 5801, Operating Transfer Out to State Funded Road Budget 034601, Operating Transfer In, Object Code 
4998. The remaining balance of the $1,108,000 SB-1 matching funds will come due during the subsequent 
phases of the project, paid out of State Funded Road budget, State Line Road object code. There is sufficient 
fund balance in the Road Budget to cover the increase in expenditures. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Federal Lands Access Program State Line Road Notification Letter
2. Federal Lands Access Program State Line Road Scoping Fund Transfer Agreement
3. Federal Lands Access Program State Line Road Scoping Memorandum of Agreement 
 
APPROVALS:
Justine Kokx Created/Initiated - 12/1/2021
John Pinckney Approved - 12/1/2021
Justine Kokx Approved - 12/7/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2021
Justine Kokx Approved - 12/7/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 12/8/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 12/8/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/8/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/8/2021



Agenda Request 
Page 3

Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/9/2021



 
 

  Central Federal Lands Highway Division      12300 West Dakota Avenue 

                                                                                                                                                                         Suite 380A 
    Lakewood, CO 80228‐2583 
  November 24, 2021  Office: 720‐963‐3698 
        james.herlyck@dot.gov 

     
    In Reply Refer To: 
    HFPP‐16 
Inyo County 
John Pinckney 
Public Works 
168 N. Edwards St 
Independence, CA 93526 
jpinckney@inyocounty.us 
 
Re:  CA FLAP INY 10(1) STATE LINE ROAD 
  California Federal Lands Access Program Project Application 
 
Mr. Pinckney: 
 
Congratulations.    The  California  Program  Decisions  Committee  (PDC)  has  short‐listed  your 
application for the above referenced project as a part of the Call for Projects. Your application is 
no longer competing against other applications. The project’s scope of work, costs, and schedule 
will be  further evaluated  for  the PDC’s  final decision,  likely  to be  in  the  fall 2022. The  scope, 
funding, and preliminary schedule are proposed as follows: 
 

Purpose:  The purpose of this project is to improve access to Death Valley National Park, Ash 
Meadows National Wildlife Refuge, and Bureau of Land Management lands. 
 
Scope:  The scope of this project includes reconstruction of 5.21 miles of State Line Road from 
Death Valley Junction to the State Line, including widening to 28 feet, raising grade, drainage, 
and safety improvements. The 28 feet width differs than what was applied for, but would be 
consistent with proposed improvements in Nye County, NV. 

 
Preliminary Schedule:  This project is preliminarily programmed for construction funding in 
late  fiscal year 2028 based on availability of  funding. Construction would  likely occur  that 
same year. The actual year funds are obligated for construction may change due to changes 
to the program and/or program funding.  
 
This  is contingent on  if Program  funding  is available. The Federal Lands Access Program  is 
currently authorized under the new Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, which is set to 
expire on September 30, 2026. The FLAP Program, or a similar program where this project 
can  be  grandfathered  into,  would  need  to  be  extended,  renewed,  or  created  through 
additional federal legislation.  
 
Funding:  The  estimated  total  project  cost,  including  engineering  and  escalation  of 
construction costs to the program year, is $9,660,000. Inyo County will provide $1,108,000 in 



 
 

2 
 

cash funds, to meet the 11.47% match requirement. The Federal Lands Access Program will 
provide $8,552,000 in cash funds. 
 
Right of Way and Utilities:  The application stated there are prescriptive rights on BLM land. 
This project will formalize the Right‐of‐Way through a Highway Easement Deed. There are no 
known utility conflicts. This will be verified through scoping and project development. 
 
Additional PDC Considerations:  The PDC limited the funding to a 28 feet wide facility to 
match improvements proposed through the Nevada FLAP program to the Nye County 
portion of the road corridor. If additional width is preferred, funding would be required 
from non‐FLAP sources. To better ascertain the existing pavement and subgrade condition, 
as a part of the scoping effort Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Central Federal 
Lands Highway Division (CFLHD) will perform a pavement investigation. This will more 
accurately determine the required pavement section, and project costs. 
 
Project  Delivery:  The  Federal  Highway  Administration  (FHWA),  Central  Federal  Lands 
Highway  Division  (CFLHD)  will  lead  the  project  delivery,  construction  contracting,  and 
contract administration of this project.   

 
 
Prior to final selection by the PDC, CFLHD will conduct a scoping effort. This effort will yield Project 
Delivery Plan (PDP) documents detailing the proposed scope, schedule, and budget anticipated 
for the project to allow the PDC to finalize the program of projects. The CFLHD Project Manager 
will be  Emilio Burgos, who  can be  reached  at  emilio.burgos@dot.gov or  (720)  963‐3639. Mr. 
Burgos will be contacting you and other project stakeholders shortly to schedule the scoping trip.  
 
As specified under the conditions of the FLAP Project Application, a scoping Funds Transfer 
Agreement (FTA) will be required between your agency and CFLHD in the amount of $20,000, 
along with a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) establishing the project scope, roles, and 
responsibilities. The drafts of these agreements are attached to this letter. Please fill in the 
appropriate information for your agency and email a scanned PDF of the executed versions to 
Mr. Burgos and me by January 21, 2022.  
 
The total project cost and associated match may be updated during scoping.  The PDC will make 
the final determination of the total program amount and required match. If the PDC and your 
agency agree with the project scope and cost estimate once scoping is complete, the PDC will 
place the project in the final program of projects, the FTA will be modified to include all 
projected project costs, and a new MOA will be developed and signed by all of the project 
partners. The PDC determines the final program year for funding based on total available 
funding and other needs in the program. 
 
We appreciate your interest in the Federal Lands Access Program and look forward to working 
with you on this project. 
 
 
 



 
 

3 
 

 
 
  Sincerely, 

  James Herlyck, P.E. 
  Federal Lands Access Program Manager & 
  Federal PDC Representative 
  FHWA‐CFLHD 
 
Attachments: Draft Scoping Funds Transfer Agreement and Memorandum of Agreement 
 
cc:  Bob Baca, Caltrans, State PDC Representative, bob.baca@dot.ca.gov   

Joshua Pack, Butte County, Local PDC Representative for CEAC, jpack@buttecounty.net  
John Gay, Imperial County, Alternate Local PDC Representative for CEAC, 
johngay@co.imperial.ca.us 
Christopher Longley, Planning and Programs Branch Chief, FHWA‐CFLHD, 
christopher.longley@dot.gov  
Jill Locken, Program Manager (Detail Assignment), FHWA‐CFLHD, jill.locken@dot.gov 
Amanda Peters, Programming (Detail Assignment), FHWA‐CFLHD, 
amanda.peters@dot.gov  
Jeff Sanders, Transportation Planner, FHWA‐CFLHD, jeffrey.sanders@dot.gov  
Emilio Burgos, Project Manager, FHWA‐CFLHD, emilio.burgos@dot.gov  
Michael Errante, Public Works Director, Inyo County, merrante@inyocounty.us 
Mike Reynolds, Superintendent, Death Valley NP, mike_reynolds@nps.gov 
Katrina Symons, Barstow Field Office Manager, BLM, ksymons@blm.gov 
Timothy Sutton, County Manager, Nye County, tsutton@co.nye.nv.us 
Tim Dahl, Public Works Director, Nye County, tdahl@co.nye.nv.us 

 
FLMA Technical Advisory Group: 
Jon Christensen, National Park Service, Jon_Christensen@nps.gov 
Amy Marshall, Presidio Trust, amarshall@presidiotrust.gov 
Jonna Hildenbrand, US Army Corps of Engineers, Jonna.M.Hildenbrand@usace.army.mil  
Robert Paul, US Army Corps of Engineers, Robert.B.Paul@usace.army.mil  
Zeferina Ruvalcaba, US Army Corps of Engineers, Zeferina.J.Ruvalcaba@usace.army.mil  
Phil Smith, US Army Corps of Engineers, Phil.Smith@usace.army.mil  
Mark Kougl, US Bureau of Land Management, mkougl@blm.gov  
Jason Quinones, US Bureau of Reclamation, JQuinones@usbr.gov  
Carrie Scott, US Bureau of Reclamation, cmscott@usbr.gov  
Dan Staton, US Bureau of Reclamation, dstaton@usbr.gov 
Armando Porras, US Fish and Wildlife Service, armando_porras@fws.gov  
Andrea Smith, US Fish and Wildlife Service, andrea_smith@fws.gov  
Shanisha Reese, US Forest Service, Shanisha.Reese@usda.gov  
 
 
 



 
 

4 
 

  



FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
FEDERAL LANDS HIGHWAY

FUNDS TRANSFER AGREEMENT
FHWA Agreement No.: 6982AF-22-K-500014

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
November 24, 2021

Agency providing funding: Inyo County

Agreement amount: $20,000.00

Period of Performance: From date of signature below to December 1, 2023

Agency receiving funding: Central Federal Lands Highway Division (CFLHD)

This Funds Transfer Agreement (FTA) is to confirm that Inyo County has committed to provide, through 
electronic funds transfer, $20,000.00 to CFLHD for State Line Road to meet the matching requirements 
and all conditions set forth in the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) dated 11/24/21 and any future 
modifications to the MOA.

FUNDS TRANSFER SUMMARY
Phase Amount Due Received Modification # Comment

Scoping $20,000.00 3/1/2022

Total: $20,000.00

AGENCY FINANCIAL AND CONTACT INFORMATION

Inyo County
Central Federal Lands Highway 

Division
DUNS # 008909830 126-129-936

Financial Contact Information
Name Michael Errante Suzanne Schmidt
Phone (760) 878-0201 (720) 963-3356
E-mail merrante@inyocounty.us Suzanne.schmidt@dot.gov 
Address 168 N. Edwards

PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526

12300 W. Dakota Ave.
Lakewood, CO 80228

Project Contact Information
Name Michael Errante Emilio Burgos
Phone (760) 878-0201 (720) 963-3639
E-mail merrante@inyocounty.us emilio.burgos@dot.gov

Regardless of the estimated costs stated in the MOA, Inyo County will provide 11.47% of the total 
Federal Lands Access Program cost required for the project, or $20,000.00, whichever is greater, 
through the construction, closeout, and resolution of any disputes.  

CFLHD shall not incur costs which result in matching funds exceeding the maximum cost stated in this 
Agreement without authorization by the Requesting Agency in the form of written modification to this 
Agreement.

Jeff Griffiths Date Contracting Officer Date

mailto:merrante@inyocounty.us
mailto:merrante@inyocounty.us
mailto:emilio.burgos@dot.gov


FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
FEDERAL LANDS HIGHWAY

FUNDS TRANSFER AGREEMENT
FHWA Agreement No.: 6982AF-22-K-500014

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
November 24, 2021

Chair, Inyo County Board of Supervisors Central Federal Lands Highway Division

CFLHD requests that these payments be made through the US Treasury's website https://pay.gov. 
Pay.gov can be used to make secure electronic payments to any Federal Government Agencies via credit 
card or direct debit. Payment shall be submitted referencing the FHWA Agreement Number.

Option 1 (Preferred Method)
Plastic card or Automatic Clearing House 
Payment (ACH Direct Debit)
 Go to Treasury’s website – https://pay.gov  
 Search for Agency Name (Transportation 

Department)
 Select the appropriate Transportation Agency 

(Federal Highway Administration)
 Follow the form instructions to make your 

payment.  Note, if making an ACH payment 
from your bank account, please select ACH 
Direct Debit as the payment type.

Option 2
Mail check payment to the following address for 
Paper Check Conversion (PCC) processing:

Make Check Payable To: 
DOT FHWA 

Mailing Address: 
Enterprise Service Center 
Federal Aviation Administration 
ATTN: AMZ-324/HQ Room 181 
6500 S. MacArthur Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

Notice to customers making payment by check:
 Please notify cfl.finance@dot.gov if mailing a check.
 When you provide a check as payment you authorize us either to use information from your check to 

make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account or to process the payment as a check 
transaction.

 When we use information from your check to make an electronic fund transfer, funds may be 
withdrawn from your account as soon as the same day we receive your payment and you will not 
receive your check back from your financial institution.

Privacy Act- A Privacy Act Statement required by 5 U.S.C. § 552a(e)(3) stating our authority for soliciting 
and collecting the information from your check, and explaining  the purposes and routine uses which will 
be made of your check information, is available from our internet site at: 
https://www.fiscal.treasury.gov/fsservices/gov/rvnColl/otcNet/rvnColl_otcnet.htm
or call toll free: at 1-866-945-7920 to obtain a copy by mail. Furnishing the check information is 
voluntary, but a decision not to do so may require you to make payment by some other method.

https://pay.gov/
https://www.fiscal.treasury.gov/fsservices/gov/rvnColl/otcNet/rvnColl_otcnet.htm


FEDERAL LANDS ACCESS PROGRAM
PROJECT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

NOVEMBER 24, 2021

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
P a g e  | 1 of 5

Project:  CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road

Limits:  Death Valley Junction to California State Line, Mile 21

State: CA

County: Inyo County

Owner of Federal Lands to which the Project Provides Access: Death Valley National 
Park/Wilderness, Ash Meadows National Wildlife Refuge

Entity with Title or Maintenance Responsibility for Facility: Inyo County

Type of Work: 

Preliminary Engineering:  Scoping

This Agreement does not obligate (commit to) the expenditure of Federal funds nor does it commit the 
parties to complete the project. Rather, this Agreement sets forth the respective responsibilities as the 
project proceeds through the project development process.

Parties to this Agreement: Federal Highway Administration-Central Federal Lands Highway Division 
(FHWA-CFLHD); Inyo County

The Program Decision Committee approved this project for scoping on: 10/06/2021
Date

AGREED:

Jeff Griffiths Date
Chair, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Judy Salomonson Date
Chief of Business Operations
FHWA-CFLHD

A. PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT

This Agreement documents the intent of the parties and sets forth the anticipated responsibilities of each 
party in the development, construction, and future maintenance of the subject project. The purpose of the 
Agreement is to identify and assign responsibilities for the environmental review, design, right-of-way, 
utilities, acquisition and construction as appropriate for this programmed project, and to ensure 
maintenance of the facility for public use if improvements are made. The parties understand that any final 
decision as to design or construction will not be made until after the environmental analysis required 
under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) is completed (this does not prevent the parties from 
assigning proposed design criteria to be studied in the environmental review process.) Any decision to 



FEDERAL LANDS ACCESS PROGRAM
PROJECT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

NOVEMBER 24, 2021

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
P a g e  | 2 of 5

proceed with the design and construction of the project will depend on the availability of appropriations at 
the time of obligation and other factors, such as issues raised during the environmental review process, a 
natural disaster that changes the need for the project, a change in Congressional direction, or other 
relevant factors.

B. AUTHORITY

This Agreement is entered into between the signatory parties pursuant to the provisions of 23 U.S.C. 204.

C. PROJECT BACKGROUND/SCOPE

Purpose:  The purpose of this project is to improve access to Death Valley National Park, Ash 
Meadows National Wildlife Refuge, and Bureau of Land Management lands.

Scope:  The scope of this project includes reconstruction of 5.21 miles of State Line Road from 
Death Valley Junction to the State Line, including widening to 28 feet, raising grade, drainage, and 
safety improvements.

D. PROJECT BUDGET

Item Estimated Cost Comments
Scoping, Survey, and Pavement 
Investigation $175,000

Total $175,000



FEDERAL LANDS ACCESS PROGRAM
PROJECT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

NOVEMBER 24, 2021

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
P a g e  | 3 of 5

E. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Responsible 
Party

Product/Service/Role Comments

FHWA-CFLHD  Preliminary engineering towards the 
development of a Scoping Summary and Project 
Development Plan (PDP)

Inyo County  Attend reviews and meetings
 Provide in a timely manner available data as 

requested by FHWA 

F. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES—SCHEDULE

Responsible
Lead

Product/Service/Role Schedule
Finish

Comments

FHWA-
CFLHD Scoping Fall 2022 Project Delivery Plan 

Development

G. FUNDING 

Funding Source Estimated 
Funding Comments

Federal Lands Access Program $155,000

Inyo County $20,000   11.47% Match

Total $175,000

If during implementation of the project it is determined that the total project cost exceeds $175,000, 
the Central Federal Lands Highway Division, and Inyo County will either mutually agree to reduce 
the scope of the project, or execute a modification to this agreement to change funding amounts.

H. MATCHING SHARE REQUIREMENTS

Inyo County will provide $20,000 to meet match requirements.

Matching or cost sharing requirements will be satisfied following the obligation of funds to the project as 
detailed above in Section G.

I. PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS—POINTS OF CONTACT

The following table provides the points of contact for this project. They are to be the first persons to deal 
with any issues or questions that arise over the implementation of each party’s role and responsibility for 
this agreement.



FEDERAL LANDS ACCESS PROGRAM
PROJECT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

NOVEMBER 24, 2021

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
P a g e  | 4 of 5

Name/Title Organization Phone Number/Email

Michael Errante Inyo County (760) 878-0201
merrante@inyocounty.us

Emilio Burgos
FHWA Project Manager

FHWA-
CFLHD

(720) 963-3639
emilio.burgos@dot.gov

J. CHANGES/AMENDMENTS/ADDENDUMS 

The agreement may be modified, amended, or have addendums added by mutual agreement of all parties. 
The change, amendment, or addendum must be in writing and executed by all of the parties.

The types of changes requiring agreement of all parties include, but are not limited to, changes that 
significantly impact scope, schedule, or budget; changes to the local match, either in type or 
responsibility; and changes that alter the level of effort or responsibilities of a party. The parties commit 
to consider suggested changes in good faith. Failure to reach agreement on changes may be cause for 
termination of this agreement.

A change in the composition of the project team members does not require the agreement to be amended.

It is the responsibility of the project team members to recognize when changes are needed and to make 
timely notification to their management in order to avoid project delivery delays. 

K. ISSUE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES MATRIX

Issues should be resolved at the lowest level possible. The issue should be clearly defined in writing and 
understood by all parties. Escalating to the next level can be requested by any party. When an issue is 
resolved, the decision will be communicated to all levels below.

FHWA Inyo County Time

Emilio Burgos
Project Manager

Michael Errante
Inyo County Public 

Works Director
30 days

Wendy Longley
Project Management 

Branch Chief

John Pinckney
Inyo County Deputy 

Public Works Director
60 days

Curtis Scott,
Chief of Engineering

Justine Kokx
Inyo County 

Transportation Planner
90 days

L. TERMINATION

This agreement may be terminated by a funding party upon 30 calendar days after written notice to the 
other parties. This agreement may also be terminated if either the environmental review (or other state 
environmental compliance) process or funding availability requires a change and the parties are not able 
to agree to the change. Any termination of this agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations 
accrued to the parties prior to termination. If Federal Access funds have been expended prior to 
termination, the funding parties’ financial liabilities shall be in the amount of the applicable share 



FEDERAL LANDS ACCESS PROGRAM
PROJECT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

NOVEMBER 24, 2021

CA FLAP INY 10(1) State Line Road
P a g e  | 5 of 5

percentages of the total reasonable costs expended on the project prior to the effective date of termination. 
Reasonable costs shall include all items/services rendered and the costs of any non-cancelable obligations 
incurred prior to the effective date of termination.



United States Department of the Interior
U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

Western Ecological Research Center
San Diego Field Station

4165 Spruance Road, Suite 200
San Diego, California 92101

Leslie Chapman
Inyo County Parks & Recreation
lchapman@inyocounty.us

9 December 2021

Hello,

Thank you very much for allowing the San Diego Field Station of the USGS Western 
Ecological Research Center to conduct field studies of Bell’s Vireos (Vireo bellii) on Inyo 
County Parks and Recreation property at Millpond Campground in 2021.  Our goal in this study 
was to use population genomic techniques to delineate the range limit between the endangered 
Least Bell’s Vireo (V. b. pusillus) and its conspecific geographical neighbor, Arizona Bell’s 
Vireo (V. b. arizonae), and to provide taxonomic classification of individuals where the two 
subspecies meet.  We did not collect genetic samples from Bell’s Vireos at Millpond 
Campground.  We collected 78 genetic samples for analysis throughout Southern California and 
Arizona.

We have enjoyed excellent relationships with property owners and look forward to 
continuing them.  We will submit a copy of the final report upon completion.  Thank you again 
for your assistance.

Sincerely,

Barbara E. Kus, Ph.D.
Research Ecologist, San Diego Field Station

mailto:lchapman@inyocounty.us

	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO

	 Open Session
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW
	5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)
	6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	7. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new Public Works emp
	8. COVID-19 STAFF REPORT

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	9. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	10. Approve the recruitment of one Office Technician II-III for the Treasurer-Tax Collector Department.
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	11. Request Board: A) approve Amendment No. 1 to the c
	Agenda Request Form
	AccompanyCo Contract Amendment
	AccompanyCo Contract

	12. Request Board ratify and approve the Staffing Vend
	Agenda Request Form
	Modified Sierra Employment Service Staffing Agreement

	13. Request Board approve the agreement between the Co
	Agenda Request Form
	Final Inyo-TCT Agreement 

	14. Request Board ratify and approve the Memorandum of
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County HHS and Bishop Unified School District Memorandum of Understanding

	15. Request Board: A) certify that $72,877.70 in funds
	Agenda Request Form
	Certification FY2021
	Transaction Listing - Federal 10.01.20~09.30.21

	16. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-57, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	Road Easement Resolution
	Forest Service National Environmental Policy Act Memorandum of Agreement

	17. Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agree
	Agenda Request Form
	Fountainhead Amendment 2
	Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)


	 Departmental
	18. Request Board: A) approve Consumer Price Index (CP
	Agenda Request Form
	EXHIBIT A - 2022 Rate Schedule
	Floor Rate Comparison

	19. Request Board approve proposed Ordinance 1277 titl
	Agenda Request Form
	Airport Parking Ordinance
	Ordinance 1167

	20. Request Board:A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 P
	Agenda Request Form
	Meyer Land Surveying Contract
	Rate Sheet - 2021-2022 

	21. Request Board:A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 S
	Agenda Request Form
	Federal Lands Access Program State Line Road Notification Letter
	Federal Lands Access Program State Line Road Scoping Fund Transfer Agreement
	Federal Lands Access Program State Line Road Scoping Memorandum of Agreement 


	 Comment
	22. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational
	23. U.S. Geological Survey - Letter regarding USGS Wes
	USGS Millpond BEVI 2021



		2021-11-24T11:57:44-0700
	JAMES A HERLYCK




